THAI PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003


1. GENERAL
Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a company registered in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.  The registered office of the Company is at 299 Moo 5 Sukhumvit Road, Choengnuen District, Aumphur Muang, Rayong Province, and a branch located at 26/56 TPI Tower, Chan Tatmai Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok.  

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture of petrochemical and petroleum products such as Plastic resins, Refinery products, Lube Base Oil and other petrochemical products.

The Company’s major shareholders as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are TPI Reorg 1 Limited incorporated in the Cayman Islands, Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited and the Leophairatana family, who held 33.40%, 24.42% and 10.33% of total fully paid share capital, respectively.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company and subsidiaries have staff of 7,464 persons and 7,366 persons, respectively in the consolidated financial statements and 5,710 persons and 5,653 persons, respectively in the financial statements of the Company.  Staff cost for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were Baht 4,027.66 million and Baht 3,119.35 million, respectively in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 3,321.07 million and Baht 2,583.03 million, respectively in the Company’s financial statements.
The Central Bankruptcy Court ordered the appointment of the Ministry of Finance as the current Plan Administrator of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited on July 11, 2003 and of six subsidiaries which are Thai ABS Co., Ltd., TPI Oil Co., Ltd., TPI Aromatics Public Co., Ltd., TPI Polyol Co., Ltd., Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd. and TPI Energy Co., Ltd. on July 28, 2003 under the Bankruptcy Act as discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, in the Thai language, and in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand.  Accordingly the financial statements are intended solely to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Thailand.
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies. 

For the convenience of the readers, an English language translation of the financial statements has been prepared from the Thai language financial statements which are issued for domestic reporting purposes. 

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been prepared under the management and responsibility of the three Plan Administrator teams as follows:-

(a) Effective Planners Limited (the former Plan Administrator) who was responsible during the period from December 15, 2000 to April 21, 2003;

(b) The joint temporary Plan Administrator (the debtor and the Official Receiver) who was responsible during the period from April 21, 2003 to July 10, 2003 and;

(c) The current Plan Administrator (the Ministry of Finance or representative from the Ministry of Finance appointed by the Central Bankruptcy Court) who is responsible from July 11, 2003 onward for the Company and from July 28, 2003 onward for the subsidiaries.

The responsibility of those Plan Administrators is in accordance with the order of the Central Bankruptcy Court, and the Plan Administrators are the chief inspectors and accounts inspectors under the Accounts Act B.E. 2543. The Plan Administrators were unable to give representation with respect to the correctness and completeness of information in the financial statements for the period from April 21, 2003 to July 10, 2003, even though their signatures appeared in the financial statements to comply with the announcement of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).  Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
	
	
	
	Country of
	
	Percentage of Holdings

	
	Business Type
	
	Registration 
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Direct Subsidiaries:-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 (Cayman Island) Ltd.
	Holding company
	
	Cayman
	
	100.00
	
	100.00

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	Producing and distributing resin
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	Distributing gasoline,

diesel and lube oil product
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing and distributing polyurethane product
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing and distributing flexible and rigid polyol
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Philippines Vinyl Corp.
	PVC product distributor
	
	Philippines
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	Manufacturing and distributing petrochemical products
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	Asian Dragon Oil Refinery Corp.
	Joint venture of found refinery plant in Philippines
	
	Philippines
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	School
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant and distributor
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	Rayong Port Service Co., Ltd.
	Port service
	
	Thailand
	
	99.93
	
	99.93

	Rayong TPI Service Co., Ltd.
	Guard service
	
	Thailand
	
	99.70
	
	99.70

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	Public utility service
	
	Thailand
	
	99.30
	
	99.30

	International Plastic Trading Co., Ltd.
	Trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.02
	
	99.02

	Indirect Subsidiaries:-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	Oil trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.92
	
	99.92

	TPI Oil (1996) Co., Ltd.
	Oil trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.93
	
	99.93

	TPI Techs Co., Ltd.
	Oil trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.98
	
	99.98

	TPI Oil (1999) Co., Ltd.
	Oil trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.93
	
	99.93

	TPI Oil (2001) Co., Ltd.
	Oil vessel renting
	
	Thailand
	
	99.98
	
	99.98

	TPI Oil (1997) Co., Ltd.
	Oil trading
	
	Thailand
	
	99.99
	
	99.99

	TPI Refinery (1997) Co., Ltd.
	Refinery
	
	Thailand
	
	99.98
	
	99.98

	TPI Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	Leasing of tank farm and
	
	Thailand
	
	99.98
	
	99.98

	
	chemical tank
	
	
	
	
	
	


Significant intra-group transactions between the Company and the subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
The consolidated financial statements have not included the financial statements of a subsidiary: 
Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited, which is held 99.99%, because such company is under a separate rehabilitation plan under Churchill Pryce Planner Limited.  Consequently, the Company is unable to control or to direct and or to govern the financial and operating policies of that subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include investments in the above subsidiaries and associates, (over which the Company has significant influence and/or has power to participate in decision making in relation to financial and operating policy decisions hereafter referred to as “associates”), prepared in the consolidated financial statements and recorded by the equity method. The financial information of those subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

1. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the financial statements of subsidiaries, which have been prepared by the management and have not been audited by the auditors.  Their total assets, total revenues and net profit (loss) reflected as percentage to total consolidated assets, total consolidated revenues and net profit (loss) in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: 

	
	Total assets
	
	Total revenues
	
	Net profit (loss)

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	%
	
	%
	
	%
	
	%
	
	%
	
	%

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 (Cayman Island) Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	0.08

	TPI Philippines Vinyl Corp.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(0.01)

	Asian Dragon Oil Refinery Corp.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	


-

	
	

-


	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	


-

	
	   0.07


2. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the financial statements of subsidiaries, which have been audited by another auditor, (except for the financial statements of International Plastic Trading Company Limited for the year 2004, which have not been audited). Their total assets, total revenues and net profit (loss) reflected as percentage to total consolidated assets, total consolidated revenues and net profit (loss) in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: 



Total assets


Total revenues


Net profit (loss)


2004
2003
2004
2003
2004
2003



%


%


%


%


%


%

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Port Service Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Rayong TPI Service Co., Ltd.
	0.03
	0.04
	0.10
	0.13
	(0.27)
	(1.02)

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	0.22
	0.23
	0.02
	0.04
	(0.12)
	(0.31)

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	International Plastic Trading Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-




Total assets


Total revenues


Net profit (loss)


2004
2003
2004
2003
2004
2003



%


%


%


%


%


%

	Subsidiaries of Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	0.09
	0.16
	0.01
	0.01
	(0.91)
	(0.55)

	TPI Oil (1996) Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TPI Techs Co., Ltd.
	0.01
	0.01
	-
	-
	-
	0.02

	TPI Oil (1999) Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TPI Oil (2001) Co., Ltd.
	0.08
	0.08
	0.01
	1.20
	0.01
	0.03

	TPI Oil (1997) Co., Ltd.
	0.01
	0.01
	-
	-
	-
	(0.05)

	TPI Refinery (1997) Co., Ltd.
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TPI Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	


-

	


-

	


-

	


-

	


-

	


-


	
	0.44
	0.53
	0.14
	1.38
	(1.29)
	(1.90)


3. The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the share of profits (losses) from investments in subsidiaries recorded by the equity method, in respect of which their financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management and have not been audited. The percentages of profit (loss) in the Company’s financial statements are equivalent to as follows:-

	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	In million Baht
	
	%
	
	In million Baht
	
	%

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Cayman Island) Ltd.
	(0.48)
	
	(0.01)
	
	2.14
	
	0.08

	TPI Philippines Vinyl Corporation
	0.19
	
	-
	
	(0.13)
	
	(0.01)

	Asian Dragon Oil Refinery Corporation
	0.02
	
	-
	
	0.12
	
	

-


	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	

-

	
	

-

	
	(0.01)
	
	

-


	
	(0.27)
	
	(0.01)
	
	2.12
	
	0.07


4. The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the share of profits (losses) from investments in subsidiaries recorded by the equity method, which have been audited by another auditor.  The percentages of profit (loss) in the Company’s financial statements are equivalent to as follows:-

	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	In million Baht
	
	%
	
	In million Baht
	
	%

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	(14.46)
	
	(0.12)
	
	(7.78)
	
	(0.29)

	Rayong Port Service Co., Ltd.
	(0.04)
	
	-
	
	(0.03)
	
	
-

	Rayong TPI Service Co., Ltd.
	(33.38)
	
	(0.27)
	
	(26.41)
	
	(1.02)

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	(0.04)
	
	-
	
	(0.03)
	
	
-

	International Plastic Trading Co., Ltd.
	0.01
	
	-
	
	(0.11)
	
	
-

	Subsidiaries of Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	(111.76)
	
	(0.91)
	
	(14.19)
	
	(0.55)

	TPI Oil (1996) Co., Ltd.
	(0.07)
	
	-
	
	(0.06)
	
	
-

	TPI Techs Co., Ltd.
	0.43
	
	-
	
	0.46
	
	0.02

	TPI Oil (1999) Co., Ltd.
	(0.06)
	
	-
	
	(0.06)
	
	
-

	TPI Oil (2001) Co., Ltd.
	1.66
	
	0.01
	
	0.90
	
	0.03

	TPI Oil (1997) Co., Ltd.
	0.05
	
	-
	
	(1.18)
	
	(0.05)

	TPI Refinery (1997) Co., Ltd.
	0.04
	
	-
	
	0.04
	
	
-

	TPI Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	      0.04
	
	

-

	
	  0.04
	
	

-


	
	(157.58)
	
	(1.29)
	
	(48.41)
	
	(1.86)


The financial statements of International Plastic Trading Company Limited for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been prepared by the management and have not been audited since the management of such company has not assured the financial statements.
5. The consolidated and the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the share of profits (losses) from investments in associates recorded by the equity method, in respect of which their financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management and have not been audited.  The percentages of profit (loss) in the Company’s financial statements are equivalent to as follows:-

	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	In million Baht
	
	%
	
	In million Baht
	
	%

	Associates
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	9.07
	
	0.07
	
	5.62
	
	0.22


	Phil-Thai Holding Co., Ltd.
	(No financial information and operation still closed)
	
	(No financial information and operation still closed)

	Kapuluan Holdings Corporation
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-


	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	(No financial information)
	
	(No financial information)

	Thai International Tanker Co., Ltd.
	(No financial information)
	
	(No financial information)

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	(No financial information)
	
	-
	
	-


Investments in associates for which no financial information has been made available are recorded at nil value in the consolidated and the Company’s financial statements.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, two subsidiaries, Thai ABS Company Limited and TPI Oil Company Limited held 2,063,600 and 12,828,400 of the Company’s common shares, respectively.  Those investments are recorded as available-for-sale securities in the subsidiaries’ financial statements.  Such investments, totalling Baht 128.21 million and Baht 204.02 million, respectively are stated at cost and deducted from shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT IN TPI POLENE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED INCLUDED IN THE LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, investment in TPI Polene Public Company Limited is held as a marketable equity security in the category of available-for-sale securities.  The investment is stated at fair value as follows:

	
	Million Baht

	
	

2004

	

2003


	
	% of Share holding
	Cost
	Market


price

	Net book


Value

	% of Share holding
	Cost
	Market


price

	Net book


Value


	Long-term investments in related parties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene Pcl.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Consolidated
	30.87
	2,916.08
	7,040.95
	10,866.75
	49.11
	2,916.08
	11,464.92
	10,866.75

	The Company Only
	30.84
	2,913.39
	7,034.46
	10,856.72
	49.07
	2,913.39
	11,454.34
	10,856.72


TPI Polene Public Company Limited is still in the process of implementing its rehabilitation plan under which TPI Polene Public Company Limited, and not the Company’s Plan Administrator, is the Plan Administrator.  The Company, therefore, also has no significance influence or control over TPI Polene Public Company Limited.
3. GOING CONCERN AND THE REHABILITATION PLAN

GOING CONCERN

On January 17, 2000, representatives of the Company’s financial creditors submitted their petition for rehabilitation of the Company to the Central Bankruptcy Court.  In February 2000, the Company filed an objection to the above rehabilitation.  On March 15, 2000, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered that the business of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited be reorganized under Chapter 3/1 of the Bankruptcy Act (as amended) (“the Law”).  On April 20, 2000, the Court ordered that Effective Planners Limited be appointed as Planner.   The Central Bankruptcy Court also ordered that seven subsidiaries had to be rehabilitated and appointed Effective Planners Limited as Planner of seven subsidiaries as specified in the Bankruptcy Act as follows:-

· Thai ABS Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on June 26, 2000.

· TPI Oil Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on June 26, 2000.

· TPI Aromatics Public Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on July 3, 2000.

· Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on July 10, 2000.

· Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on July 19, 2000.

· TPI Energy Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on July 19, 2000.

· TPI Polyol Co., Ltd. was ordered by the Court on July 19, 2000.

On November 27, 2000, the meeting of creditors resolved to accept the rehabilitation plan of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited.  The meeting of creditors of the six subsidiaries resolved to accept the rehabilitation plans on the following dates:-

	

Company
	Date of the creditors’ meeting passing       a resolution to accept the plan

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.

Thai ABS Co., Ltd.

Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.

TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.

TPI Energy Co., Ltd.

TPI Aromatics PCL.
	
November 21, 2000


November 22, 2000


November 23, 2000


November 23, 2000


November 23, 2000


November 24, 2000


On December 6, 2000, Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited was ordered to terminate its rehabilitation by the Central Bankruptcy Court as the meeting of creditors resolved to reject the rehabilitation plan and the amendment.  In addition, the Court ordered to appoint Churchill Pryce Planner Company Limited as the Planner on January 16, 2001 and as the Plan Administrator on August 23, 2001.

On December 15, 2000, the Central Bankruptcy Court approved the rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries under Section 90/58 of the Bankruptcy Act, B.E. 2483, and appointed Effective Planners Limited as the Plan Administrator.  Once the Plan Administrator learns of the Court’s order, the right and duties of the Planner shall immediately pass to the Plan Administrator.  

On April 21, 2003, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered to remove Effective Planners Limited as the Company’s Plan Administrator and ordered to appoint the debtor and the Official Receiver as the joint temporary Plan Administrator of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited.

On May 13, 2003, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered to give permission for the Plan Administrator of six subsidiaries to discontinue its function as the Plan Administrator and appointed Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited and the Official Receiver as the joint temporary Plan Administrator.

On July 7, 2003, the creditors’ meeting approved the special resolution to accept the Ministry of Finance as the current Plan Administrator.  On July 11, 2003, the Central Bankruptcy Court also ordered as the Black Case No. For.2/2543 and the Red Case No. For. 8/2543 to appoint the Ministry of Finance as the current Plan Administrator of the Company in accordance with the resolution of creditors’ meeting.  The Ministry of Finance or a group of persons who is a representative of the Ministry of Finance shall have rights and duties according to the law and the rehabilitation plan.

The current Plan Administrator comprises of General Mongkon Ampornpisit, Mr. Pala Sookawesh, Mr. Pakorn Malakul Na Ayudhya, Mr. Aree Wongsearaya, and Mr. Thanong Bidaya who are representatives of the Ministry of Finance to implement, amend or modify, authorize or hire persons or group of person to perform as the guideline for the rehabilitation approved by the Ministry of Finance. Later in October 2004, Mr. Aree Wongsearaya had resigned from the Plan Administrator of the Company and its six subsidiaries.
On July 21, 2003, the Official Receiver asked the Ministry of Finance to consent to be the current Plan Administrator of six subsidiaries and the Ministry of Finance consented to be the current Plan Administrator on that date.

On July 23, 2003, the creditors’ meeting approved the special resolution to accept the Ministry of Finance as the current Plan Administrator. On July 28, 2003, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered to appoint the Ministry of Finance as the current Plan Administrator of six subsidiaries in accordance with the resolution of the creditors’ meeting which resolved to nominate the Ministry of Finance or representatives from the Ministry of Finance to have rights and duties according to the law and the rehabilitation plan.  
On February 13, 2004, the current Plan Administrator advised that an event of default on the inability to meet the non-core assets milestones and outstanding balance of advances to related parties from converting debts into the Company’s share capital in 2001 were included in the amended rehabilitation plan.
As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries have a deficit of Baht 72,928.85 million and Baht 86,359.22 million in the consolidated financial statements, respectively and Baht 73,249.67 million and Baht 86,680.04 million in the Company’s financial statements, respectively. As at December 31, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries had current liabilities exceeding current assets by Baht 13,608.21 million and Baht 15,426.87 in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements, respectively.  
The Company and its subsidiaries have delayed the payment of interest under the rehabilitation plan dated September 25, 2000 and November 1, 2000, as follows:
· The Company and its six subsidiaries have delayed the payment of Tier 1 interest under the rehabilitation plan incurred from April 2003 to December 31, 2003 of Baht 992.68 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 856.19 million in the Company’s financial statements.  The unpaid accrued interest is the difference between the interest rate specified in the Plan (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR plus 2% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at their applicable 3 months LIBOR plus 2% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at 3 months EURIBOR plus 2% per annum) and interest rate repaid by the current Plan Administrator (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR minus 1% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at LIBOR plus 1% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at EURIBOR plus 1% per annum).
· The Company and its six subsidiaries have delayed the payment of Tier 1 interest under the rehabilitation plan incurred from January 2004 to November 9, 2004 of Baht 1,218.51 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 1,056.91 million in the Company’s financial statements.  The unpaid accrued interest is the difference between the interest rate specified in the Plan (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR plus 2% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at their applicable 3 months LIBOR plus 2% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at 3 months EURIBOR plus 2% per annum) and interest rate repaid by the current Plan Administrator (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR minus 1% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at LIBOR plus 1% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at EURIBOR plus 1% per annum).
On September 22, 2003, and November 21, 2003 the scheme creditors voted in the consolidated form of voting request with respect to the delay in making interest payments and whether this delay is called an event of default under the rehabilitation plan. The result, therefore, is that the participating scheme creditors have not voted to call any events of default. Up to the date of the audit report, the scheme creditors have not raised the subject of voting as to whether to call an event of default specified in the Plan.
In addition, the Company and its six subsidiaries under the management of Effective Planners Limited defaulted under the Plan due to not being able to sell the non-core assets at least USD 200 million in aggregate and repay the creditors debts by December 31, 2001 as stipulated in the rehabilitation plan. The scheme creditors voted to take no action in respect of the inability to meet the non-core assets milestone. 
However, the current Plan Administrator submitted the amended rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries which plan was approved by the Ministry of Finance and the participating scheme creditors.  On November 10, 2004, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered to approve the amended rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries.
Situations between the Company and Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. (as referred “the related company”)
· The Company agreed with the related company to rent the Company’s land in compliance with the land lease agreement in the area of the Plant at Rayong Province in order to install oil storage tanks and pipe. The term of agreement is 5 years commencing on January 16, 2001 until January 15, 2006.  The annual rental fee amounts to USD 1,529,700.
· The Company agreed to provide services regarding oil tank storage and pipe in compliance with an oil storage management agreement.  The period of the agreement was 5 years from January 16, 2001 to January 15, 2006.  The initial monthly service fee amounts to USD 60,025 in 2002 and USD 232,500 in 2001 and a supplementary fee when delivery amount of the in-bound products in any particular month exceeds the base delivery amount.  The supplementary fee shall be calculated at the rate of USD 0.03 per barrel of in-bound products in excess of the base delivery amount.
Later on November 26, 2004, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company terminated the land lease agreement with the related company because the Company did not want Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. to rent all land as specified in the land rental agreement from January 1, 2005 onwards.  According to the termination of the land lease agreement, the oil storage management agreement was also terminated.  The effects of terminating the agreement, which are presently not determinable, are as follows:

1. may affect the oil storage capacity of the Company and a subsidiary (TPI Oil Co., Ltd.);

2. the effect from the offset between the Company and the related company of Baht 102.16 million, which may be incomplete because of lacking the supporting settlement document;

3. may affect the recoverable amount of the repayment from trade accounts receivable and short-term loans from related party which are summarized as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	As at December 31, 2004

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	Outstanding balances of:
	
	
	

	-
Trade account receivable
	25,587,118
	
	25,587,118

	-
Short-term loan to related party
	2,011,018,186
	
	1,517,966,607

	
	2,036,605,304
	
	1,543,553,725

	Less
Trade account payable
	(341,195,073)
	
	(341,195,073)

	

Short-term loan from related party
	   (39,040,709)
	
	   (39,040,709)

	
	 (380,235,782)
	
	 (380,235,782)

	
Outstanding balances - Net
	1,656,369,522
	
	1,163,317,943


The Rehabilitation Plan of the Company and Its Six Subsidiaries for the financial statements as at December 31, 2004

The particulars of the amended rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries as referred to “TPI Group” which was resolved by the Creditors’ meeting and approved by the Central Bankruptcy Court and except for the change of the management and the release of the guarantee in compliance with the rehabilitation plan of November 10, 2004 are as follows:
1. Debts restructuring

The proposed amendments to the business reorganization framework in relation to the debt repayment can be summarized as follows:

· Single entity treatment, this Plan deals with the reorganization of the Company and other members of the TPI Group. The TPI Group operates its business through its listed parent company, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Co., Ltd., and a number of operating subsidiaries. 
· In order to achieve the single entity outcome, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries will be restructured as a single economic unit thereby pooling their respective cash flow and assets and liabilities for purposes of the Plan. Additional reorganization orders have been obtained in respect of each of the following key operating subsidiaries (collectively called the “Subsidiaries in Reorganization”):

(a) TPI Oil Company Limited
(d) Thai Polyurethane Industry Company Limited

(b) Thai ABS Company Limited
(e) TPI Polyol Company Limited, and

(c) TPI Aromatics Public Company Limited
(f) TPI Energy Company Limited

· Four standard currencies. Scheme Debt will continue to be denominated in THB, US$, Yen and Euros and bear interest based on their relevant reference rates;

· Equal treatment principle. Creditors of substantially similar claims and interests are treated     equally; as that time, to be serviced the right of crditors. 
· Scheme Debt restructured into six tranches. The debt and equity structures will be amended to reflect the debt service capability to be serviced from the TPI Group’s cash flow:

(a) Original tier I and II debt will be merged into a single fund and thereafter will be classified into Tranche A Debt, Tranche B Debt, Tranche C Debt and Tranche D Debt, to be serviced from the TPI Group’s cash flow.
(b) Two Special Payment Scheme Debt tranches will be repaid out of:

· The realization of the proceeds of sale or transfer of TPI Polene Plc. shares (Special Payment Scheme Debt Part 1 “SPSD-1”);
· Special Payment Scheme Debt Part 2 (“SPSD-2”) representing the Aggregate Principal less the debts in Tranche A-D and SPSD-1 (being the approximate equivalent of US$ 650 million), which will be repaid and discharged by the proceeds of sale of equity under the Plan or settled by way of a debt to equity conversion under the conditions prescribed in the Plan.

(c) Accrued interest to be written-off upon the repayment and discharge of SPSD-2 by the proceeds of sale of equity under the Plan or the debt to equity conversion under the conditions prescribed in the Plan.
The debt allocation the US$ equivalent allocation to tranches and the Special Payment Scheme Debt. The revised debt restructuring plan envisages a reduction of principal repayment of the Company and its six subsidiaries.
The principal repayment of approximately US$ 2,700 million from cash flow mainly consists of:
· Sustainable Debt of US$ 1,350 million bearing commercial rates

· Concession Debt of US$ 450 million bearing concessional interest rate

· Special Payment Scheme Debt of US$ 900 million

The allocation of scheme debts to be in compliance with the restructuring plan: 
· Sustainable Debt of US$ 1,350 million 

(a) Tranche A debts of US$ 500 million

Maturity 
5 years

Currency 
4 currencies (THB, US$, EUR, Yen)

Interest
Commercially-based interest rates

-
THB denominated: MLR -1%


-
US$ and Yen denominated: applicable 3 month LIBOR +1%


-
Euro denominated: applicable 3 month EURIBOR +1%

Repayment
Principal repaid in 9 unequal semi-annual installments


Commencing 12 months from the New Court Sanction Date (on November 

   10, 2004)
(b) Tranche B debts of US$ 850 million

Maturity 
10 years

Currency 
4 currencies (THB, US$, EUR, Yen)

Interest
Commercially-based interest rates

-
THB denominated: MLR 


-
US$ and Yen denominated: applicable 3 month LIBOR +2%


-
Euro denominated: applicable 3 month EURIBOR +2%

Repayment
Principal repaid in 10 unequal semi-annual installments


Commencing 66 months from the New Court Sanction Date (on November 

   10, 2004)
· Concession Debt of US$ 450 million 
(c) Tranche C debts of US$ 150 million

Maturity 
10 years

Currency 
4 currencies (THB, US$, EUR, Yen)

Interest
Concessional interest rate at 1% in Year 1, 2% in Year 2, 3% in Year 3 and


4% thereafter


Interest rate not to exceed interest rate on Tranche A for the relevant 
currency at the time 

Repayment
Bullet principal payment 10 years from the New Court Sanction Date 

   (on November 10, 2004)
(d) Tranche D debts of US$ 300 million

Maturity 
12 years

Currency 
4 currencies (THB, US$, EUR, Yen)

Interest
Concessional interest rate at 1% in Year 1, 2% in Year 2, 3% in Year 3 and

4% thereafter


Interest rate not to exceed interest rate on Tranche A for the relevant  currency at the time 

Repayment
Bullet principal payment 12 years from the New Court Sanction Date 

   (on November 10, 2004)
· Special Payment Scheme Debt of US$ 900 million 
(e) Special Payment Scheme Debt (“SPSD”) of US$ 900 million

Repayment
Discharged through the sale of equity under the Plan and sale of TPI’s 249
million TPI Polene Plc. shares


To be completed not later than 8 weeks prior to the Plan implementation 
expire date
In case SPSD is not settled as above, the following shall apply

· SPSD-1 debts of US$ 250 million

Interest
Concessional interest rate at 1%

Repayment
Settled by proceeds from sale of TPI’s 249 million TPI Polene Plc. shares or in kind


Sale to be completed within 12 months from the New Court Sanction Date (on November 10, 2004) 

· SPSD-2 debts of US$ 650 million

Interest
No interest

Repayment
Discharged through the sale of Equity under the Plan or a debt to equity 
conversion

(f) Accrued interest debts of US$ 250 million

· Written-off

2. Capital Restructuring

Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited will decrease and then increase its registered capital and amend its Memorandum of Association to reflect such reduction and increase of capital:

	
	Framework

	Reduce Capital
	▪
Capital reduction of registered shares
	▪
Registered capital decreases from Baht 81,000 million to Baht 78,489 million

	Reduce Registered Capital (Par Reduction)
	▪
Capital reduction via par reduction from Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share
	▪
Issued and paid-up capital decreases from Baht 78,489 million to Baht 7,849 million
▪
Offset against retained loss

	Increase Capital
	▪
increase registered capital by issuing new ordinary shares for sale to the strategic investor
	▪
Registered capital increases by Baht 11,651 million represented by 11,651 million shares to Baht 19,500 million represented by 19,500 million shares


	
	Framework

	Interest Forgiveness
	▪
Creditors’ forgive outstanding accrued interest of approximately Baht US$ 250 million
	▪
Write back accrued interest, further reducing retained loss

	Increase Registered Capital 
	▪
Increase registered capital for ESOP
	▪
Issued and paid-up capital increases by Baht 975 million (approximately 5% of registered capital) for ESOP


If no strategic investor makes an investment as contemplated above, the Plan Administrator shall allocate such share capital for conversion of SPSD-2 to equity. Accrued interest of US$ 250 million will be written off upon the repayment and discharge of the SPSD-2.

3. Strategic Investor

3.1
Sale of Equity and TPI Polene Plc. Shares

The Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) shall have an absolute right to arrange for the sale of the Equity to Strategic Investors and the TPI Polene Plc. Shares for an aggregate sale proceeds of not less than the amount of SPSD not later than 8 weeks before the Plan Implementation Expiry Date without having to obtain any approval from the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) or the Scheme Creditors.

3.2
Identity of Strategic Investors

The Strategic Investor shall be a Thai juristic person (corporate entities) in the form of an investment fund or a juristic person possessing expertise in petrochemical or petroleum business or MOF. The Strategic Investor may comprise of one or more corporate entities, or a consortium or joint venture, or group of consortia or joint ventures, provided that at least one member possesses the said qualification. 

The CoC may propose for consideration by the MOF the list of juristic persons with the qualifications set out in the first paragraph, which the CoC wishes to propose as Strategic Investors and/or to participate in the management of the Company, or the list of juristic persons or persons whom the CoC does not wish to be a participant in the management of the Company. The MOF will consider the names on the said lists as the MOF deems appropriate.

3.3
Process in Respect of Existing Equity

The MOF shall appoint an escrow agent (“Escrow Agent”) to keep in custody the share certificates representing the Existing Equity for the purpose of selling or taking any other actions in respect of the Existing Equity pursuant to the terms of the Plan. 

The Escrow Agent shall act solely on the instructions of the MOF. Every Scheme Creditor shall deliver the share certificates representing their respective portions of the Existing Equity to the Escrow Agent and shall empower the Escrow Agent to act on behalf of the Scheme Creditors in the sale, transfer, and/or any other acts to effect the transfer of ownership and other benefits of the Scheme Creditors in relation to the shares comprising the Existing Equity, including the delivery of share certificates, the endorsement of share certificates, as well as the execution of any documents in relation thereto.

3.4
Process in Respect of New Equity

The Company shall proceed immediately when notified by the MOF to issue new shares comprising the New Equity to be sold to the MOF or a person nominated by the MOF (in order to sell such shares to Strategic Investors) or to be sold to Strategic Investors procured by the MOF. The issuance of new shares comprising the New Equity shall be in accordance with the rules, conditions and procedures prescribed by the MOF.

3.5
Other Provision

In case SPSD is not settled according to the terms, SPSD-1 and SPSD-2 will be settled as follows:

· SPSD-1 will be settled by the proceeds from the sale of TPI Polene Plc. shares within 1 year after the New Court Sanction Date. If no sales within 1 year, TPI Polene Plc. shares will be transferred to Creditors as repayment for SPSD-1;

· SPSD-2 will be repaid and discharged by the proceeds of sales of Equity under the Plan. If there is no sale within 8 weeks prior to the Plan Implementation Expiry Date, SPSD-2 will settled by way of debt to equity conversion at the price which will result in an increase of the Scheme Creditors’ shareholding in TPI from 75 per cent to not exceeding 90 per cent of all the shares after the increase of capital.

If there is no sale of Equity under the Plan to Strategic Investors, Scheme Creditors can pass a resolution based on a two-thirds majority that an agreement with Strategic Investors in respect of the purchase of the Equity under the Plan shall no longer be a requirement of the Plan.

4. Other key plan terms

4.1
Plan Exit Conditions

The Plan will be deemed to be successfully completed upon satisfaction of all of the following requirements:

· Completion of capital restructuring of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited and accompanying changes made to its memorandum of association including the new issue of New Equity;
· Restructure of Board of Directors of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited;
· Agreement with the Strategic Investors has been entered into and performed in accordance with the conditions outlined in the Plan OR Scheme Creditors have passed a two-thirds resolution waiving the agreement with Strategic Investors as an exit condition;
· SPSD-1 has been settled;
· Amendment to the Plan, if any, has been approved by the Court;
· Terms and conditions for issuing securities to TPI Group employees have been prescribed by the Plan Administrator.
4.2
Hardship Provision

If there is an Exceptional Event that severely affects the Company’s ability to meet its debt service obligations, the Company may request to discuss a remedy with the Scheme Creditors. When the Company has submitted such a request, the Debtor and the Committee of Creditors shall consider the matter in good faith on a fair basis, and with the aim of providing means to enable the Company to mitigate the consequences of the Exceptional Event as soon as possible. If, after 180 days, no means to enable the Debtor to mitigate the consequences of the Exceptional Event which are acceptable to two-thirds of the Scheme Creditors could be formed, an Event of Default under the plan will be deemed to have occurred.

4.3
Governing Law

The governing law will be Thai law during reorganization and English law outside reorganization.

4.4
Other Conditions

	Condition plan provision
	describe

	Period
	· Plan implementation period shall be extended for 1 year, expiring on December 31, 2005

	Existing Agreements
	· All rights under existing agreements, instruments and security frozen and temporarily replaced by the Plan
· Following the Exit Date, all terms of servicing and repayment of Scheme Debt will be governed exclusively by the Plan

	Transfer of Claims and/or Obligations
	· Scheme Creditors are able to sell their debt in accordance with the Plan


and in compliance with the letter of the Plan Administrator by Mr. Pakorn Malakul Na Ayudhya and Mr. Pala Sookawesh which determined the guideline for accounting record as follows:

On January 28, 2005, in relation to the guideline for the inter-company debts (debts between Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited and its six subsidiaries which were under the same rehabilitation plan) in compliance with the determination of the amended rehabilitation plan as follows:

· Intercompany debts which occurred before the Company engaged the rehabilitation process and submitted the respective claims to the Official Receiver which these claims are classified as other intercompany debts.  The rehabilitation plan has determined the guideline as follow:
1. Principal will be repaid one time in full on the date falling on the twelfth anniversary of the New Court Sanction (on November 10, 2004) or when the Company has already repaid scheme debts to the financial institution.

2. All other intercompany debts in each scheme currency shall bear interest at the rate equal to the interest rate applicable to Tranche A debt for that scheme currency.  Interest shall be payable on interest payment dates as defined in the plan (the last bank working day of March, June, September and December of every year).  If the debts will not be repaid, the debts will be accrued.

3. Original accrued interest which incurred until November 10, 2004 will be written-off in full.  The accrued interest will be written-off from November 10, 2004 onwards. 

· Intercompany debts which occurred after the Company engaged the rehabilitation process which were interest charge or other debts in compliance with the former rehabilitation plan and Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Co., Ltd. had repaid instead of its six subsidiaries.

Since the particular of the plan shall preserve the single entity concept, these debts will be classified as other indebtedness for which the guideline is as follows:

1. Principal will be repaid on the date falling on the twelfth anniversary of the New Court Sanction (on November 10, 2004) or when the Company has already repaid scheme debts to the financial institution. 

2. The interest rate applicable to the debt to be reimbursed shall be equal to the average of the interest rates on a 12-month fixed deposit of 4 commercial banks and all accrued interest shall be paid together with the repayment of debt.

· Operating expenses which occurred after the Company engaged the rehabilitation process and the expenses that the Company has repaid on behalf of its six subsidiaries, the amended rehabilitation plan did not determine the guideline for these debts.  Therefore, the guidelines such as debts repayment, interest rate charge will be in compliance with the determination of each company.

On February 2, 2005, in relation to interest charge on loans to related companies which were not under the plan, the meeting of the Group of the Plan Administrator approved to charge interest at the rate equal to the interest rate applicable to Tranche A debt as defined in the amended rehabilitation plan and start to calculate from January 1, 2005 onwards.

On February 3, 2005, in relation to the guideline for indebtedness with TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd. Which is a related party debts; therefore, the debts shall be processed same as Intercompany debts in compliance with the above guideline dated January 28, 2005.
On February 4, 2005, in relation to the adjustment of debts between the Company’s debts and debts of TPI Aromatics Public Co., Ltd. and Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd, the subsidiaries have repaid the debts instead of offsetting the debts.
Up to the date of the report, the Company and its six subsidiaries are in the process of implementing the amended rehabilitation plan, including repayment of the scheme creditors, restructure of share capital and issuance of new shares. The Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and the Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the amended rehabilitation plan will be successfully completed by December 31, 2005 and the Company and subsidiaries will continue in existence. The validity of this assumption is dependent upon the Company and subsidiaries’ ability to meet their financial obligations under the amended rehabilitation plan and the success of future operations.  If the Company and its subsidiaries are unable to meet there requirements, adjustments would have to be made to reduce the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any additional liabilities that might arise and to reclassify assets and liabilities.
The Rehabilitation Plan of the Company and Its Six Subsidiaries for the financial statements as at December 31, 2003

Creditor classes under the rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries dated September 25, 2000 and November 1, 2000 which was accepted by the meeting of creditors and approved by the Central Bankruptcy Court are summarized as follows:
· Two tier classification
After the initial payment of fees and expenses relating to the business reorganization, the common interest date payment, and the conversion of accrued interest to equity, the remaining Scheme Debt was restructured into tier I and tier II debt;
· Tier I interest rates and repayment 
The debt of approximately US$ 1,949 million, (comprising loans of US$ 1,764 million (including Islamic facilities) and working capital facilities of US$ 185 million), were to be paid on a monthly basis from the TPI Group’s operating cash flow at MLR + 2% per annum for THB denominated debts, three-month LIBOR + 2% per annum for US$ and Yen denominated debts, and three-month EURIBOR + 2% per annum for Euro denominated debts. The due date for tier I debt repayment was 31 December 2004; 

· Tier II interest rates and repayment.
The debt of approximately US$ 972 million was to be paid interest as the same rate of tier I on a monthly basis from the cash flow from existing operations and principal repayment from proceeds from asset sales. The due date for tier II debt repayment was 31 December 2004;

· Sale of non-core assets
To repay up to US$ 200 million of tier II Scheme Debt; 
· New loans 
New loans in 2004 of US$ 1,884 million to refinance the remaining Scheme Debts.

If Plan implementation of the Company and its six subsidiaries is not successfully completed, the process of rehabilitation may be terminated or revoked and the Court may order absolute receivership.  This would affect the Company and its six subsidiaries and their ability to comply with their existing loan agreements.

On August 4, 2004, the Ministry of Finance had considered the current Plan Administrator’s proposal as specified in the Company’s letter, (the Company’s letter dated July 1, 2003, July 21, 2003 and July 29, 2003) that the rehabilitation plan had to be amended in order to achieve the plan implementation.  Therefore, the Ministry of Finance resolved to comply with the legal process especially under Section 90/63 of the Bankruptcy Act, B.E. 2483 and the additional amendment.
On September 27, 2004, the committee of creditors of Company had arranged the vote of the participating scheme creditors for the amended rehabilitation plan of the Company.  As the result, the plan amendment was resolved by the scheme creditors.

On October 12, 2004, the Official Receiver had arranged the meeting of the creditors for considering the Company’s Plan Administrator’s proposal date September 6, 2004 and Date October 7 and 8, 2004, the committee of creditors of Company approved the Plan Administrator’s proposal under Section 90/63 and Section 90/46(2) of the Bankruptcy Act, B.E. 2483.  

On November 26, 2004, the Official Receiver had arranged the meeting of the creditor for the six subsidiary’s Plan Administrator’s proposal date September 29, 2004, the committee of creditors approved the Plan Administrator’s proposal under Section 90/63 and Section 90/46 (2) of the Bankruptcy Act, B.E. 2483.

And the Central Bankruptcy Court had postponed the amended rehabilitation approval date from November 1, 2004 to November 10, 2004.

The Progress of Rehabilitation of the Company and Its Six Subsidiaries
Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited and six subsidiaries have been in rehabilitation since the year 2000.  The Plan Administrator has implemented certain matters in the rehabilitation plan (existing plan) such as: paying Tier 1 interest to the scheme creditors; sale of debts and investments in related companies; conversion of accrued interest and guarantee fees of the Company and its subsidiaries into share capital of the Company; gaining approval for working capital limit from the committee of creditors, condominium sale; and mortgaging land including structures, and share certificates of 14 companies as collateral pursuant the rehabilitation plan, etc. 
For the year ended December 31, 2004, the current Plan Administrator of the Company and its six subsidiaries has rectified the financial position and operations of the Company and its six subsidiaries.  The significant matters are as follows:

1.
During the year 2004, the Company repaid interest expense incurred from December 2003 to November 9, 2004 under the existing plan at the interest rate determined as the current Plan Administrator agreed with the Committee of Creditors (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR minus 1% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at LIBOR plus 1% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at EURIBOR plus 1% per annum) of Baht 2,220.44 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 1,926.43 million in the Company’s financial statements.  

2. On December 29, 2004, the Company repaid the unpaid accrued interest incurred from November 9, 2004 to December 31, 2004 at the interest rate determined under the amended restructuring plan of Baht 367.44 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 309.54 million in the Company’s financial statements.

3. On December 31, 2004, the Company and six subsidiaries allocated principals of Scheme Debt under the amended restructuring plan. Please see note 17 to financial statement.

4. On December 31, 2004, the Company and six subsidiaries allocated debt of the Company and subsidiaries with related companies in compliance with the letter of the Plan Administrator on January 28, 2004, February 2, 3 and 4, 2004, under the amended restructuring plan, as follow:
· As at December 31, 2004, receivables under the rehabilitation plan – related parties are as follows:

	
	Baht


	
	The Company Only

	Short-term loan to - principal
	5,553,013,993

	
- accrued interest income
	     20,107,257

	
	5,573,121,250

	Less
Current portion of receivable under the rehabilitation plan due within one year shown under current assets (Accrued interest income)
	

    (17,420,617)

	Receivables under the rehabilitation plan – related parties - net
	5,555,700,633


As at December 31, 2004, Creditors under the rehabilitation plan – related parties are as follows:

	
	Baht


	
	The Company Only

	Short-term loan from - principal
	286,595,523

	Creditors under the rehabilitation plan – related parties
	286,595,523


5. As at December 31, 2004, the Company had written-off accrued interest income of Baht 1,698.85 million of three subsidiaries under the rehabilitation plan net of accrued interest expense to a subsidiary (TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.) of Baht 109.46 million in compliance with the letter of the Plan Administrator dated January 28, 2005, and February 3, 2005.  The effect from the debt written-off was presented as “loss from rehabilitation plan” of Baht 1,589.39 million under extraordinary item in the Company’s financial statements.
Up to December 31, 2003, the current Plan Administrator of the Company and its six subsidiaries had rectified the financial position and operations of the Company and its six subsidiaries.  The significant matters are as follows:

1. On July 11, 2003, the Central Bankruptcy Court permitted the Company to make a legal act for the request regarding the working capital limit of Baht 3,294.10 million to purchase crude oil, raw material and spare parts to be utilized in the production process and the normal trade process that has been controlled by the Official Receiver.

2. From July 22, 2003 to August 7, 2003, the Company made payment of Baht 3,294.10 million to Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited-Head Office.

3. On December 19, 2003, the Company repaid the unpaid accrued interest incurred from April 2003 to November 2003 at the interest rate determined as the current Plan Administrator agreed with the Committee of Creditors (debts denominated in Baht currency bear interest at MLR minus 1% per annum, in US$ and Yen currencies bear interest at LIBOR plus 1% per annum and in Euro currency bear interest at EURIBOR plus 1% per annum) of Baht 1,588.92 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 1,387.24 million in the Company’s financial statements.
4. On November 25, 2003, December 22 and 25, 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries were granted working capital facilities up to USD 120 million from three domestic commercial banks to purchase raw material.  The interest rate is charged at LIBOR plus 1% per annum, 6 months LIBOR plus 2% per annum and LIBOR 2.5% per annum.  Such working capital facilities were guaranteed by seven bank deposit accounts and the rights in twelve trade accounts receivable as collateral.

5. On February 13, 2004, the current Plan Administrator advised that the event of default on the inability to meet the non-core assets milestones and outstanding balance of advances to related parties from converting debts into the Company’s share capital in 2001, will be included as a part of the plan amendment.

Creditors’ Respective Claims for Payment of the Company and Its Subsidiaries
Since the appointment of the Company’s and the six subsidiaries’ Planner, creditors had filed their respective claims for payment from the Company and the six subsidiaries with the Official Receiver.  Up to December 31, 2004, those claims are summarized as below:-

1.
Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited 

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 363 creditors up to March 15, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 276,930.34 million (translated by exchange rate on March 15, 2000) is summarized as follows:-


 (Amounts: Million)

Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the



for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court


Debts under examination



Amounts in 

Amounts in

Amounts in
Currency
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
	THB
	117,195.78
	117,195.78
	90,755.84
	90,755.84
	10,769.72
	10,769.72

	USD
	3,207.72
	121,862.44
	1,766.34
	76,488.92
	2.00
	78.56

	YEN
	48,769.23
	17,690.26
	16,021.65
	5,801.49
	-
	-

	S$
	0.14
	3.12
	0.14
	3.50
	-
	-

	GBP
	0.99
	59.46
	0.04
	2.93
	-
	-

	FR
	1.86
	10.49
	1.08
	33.43
	-
	-

	EUR
	1.14
	42.20
	0.93
	42.02
	-
	-

	DM
	515.50
	9,724.29
	119.49
	2,760.72
	-
	-

	ATS
	3,854.32
	  10,342.30
	416.80
	    1,366.20
	-
	

-


	
	
	276,930.34
	
	177,255.05
	
	10,848.28


2.
Thai ABS Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 58 creditors up to June 26, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 28,521.80 million (translated by exchange rate on June 26, 2000) is summarized as follows:-


 (Amounts: Million)

Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the



for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court


Debts under examination



Amounts in 

Amounts in

Amounts in
Currency
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
	THB
	18,969.65
	18,969.65
	7,935.63
	7,935.63
	75.68
	75.68

	USD
	189.48
	7,427.65
	113.10
	4,897.84
	1.96
	76.90

	YEN
	5,556.24
	2,093.19
	37.78
	13.68
	-
	-

	EUR
	0.76
	28.04
	0.68
	30.79
	-
	-

	DM
	0.17
	         3.27
	0.22
	         5.17
	-
	

-


	
	
	28,521.80
	
	12,883.11
	
	152.58


3.
TPI Polyol Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 12 creditors up to July 19, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 1,072.59 million (translated by exchange rate on July 19, 2000) is summarized as follows:-


 (Amounts: Million)

Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the



for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court


Debts under examination



Amounts in 

Amounts in

Amounts in
Currency
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
	THB
	825.17
	825.17
	386.77
	386.77
	-
	

-


	USD
	6.15
	   247.42
	6.15
	272.77
	-
	

-


	
	
	1,072.59
	
	659.54
	
	

-



4.
TPI Aromatics Public Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 17 creditors up to July 3, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 16,347.46 million is summarized as follows:-

 (Amounts: Million)




Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the




for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court

Debts under examination
Currency
Equivalent Baht

Equivalent Baht

Equivalent Baht
	THB
	
	16,347.46
	
	7,558.06
	
	

-



5.
TPI Energy Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 2 creditors up to July 19, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 369.21 million is summarized as follows:-

(Amounts: Million)




Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the




for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court

Debts under examination
Currency
Equivalent Baht

Equivalent Baht

Equivalent Baht
	THB
	
	369.21
	
	364.85
	
	

-



6.
TPI Oil Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 44 creditors up to June 26, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 6,714.77 million (translated by exchange rate on June 26, 2000) is summarized as follows:-


 (Amounts: Million)

Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the



for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court


Debts under examination



Amounts in 

Amounts in

Amounts in
Currency
 foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
	THB
	6,360.81
	6,360.81
	5,064.79
	5,064.79
	17.70
	17.70

	USD
	9.03
	   353.96
	9.01
	   390.33
	-
	

-


	
	
	6,714.77
	
	5,455.12
	
	17.70


7.
Thai Polyurethane Industry Company Limited

The balance of debts which were filed by creditors for payment totalled 8 creditors up to July 10, 2000, being equivalent to Baht 1,303.54 million (translated by exchange rate on July 10, 2000) is summarized as follows:-


 (Amounts: Million)

Debts examined by the Official Receiver


Debts per respective claims
and approved by the



for payment


Central Bankruptcy Court


Debts under examination



Amounts in 

Amounts in

Amounts in
Currency
 foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
foreign currency
Equivalent Baht
	THB
	1,263.70
	1,263.70
	256.07
	256.07
	-
	

-


	USD
	1.00
	     39.84
	1.00
	  44.36
	-
	

-


	
	
	1,303.54
	
	300.43
	
	

-



These amounts of debts which were still being examined were translated at exchange rates at the end of year.
As at December 31, 2003, the Company has short-term loans to six related parties managed by the same Plan Administrator and one related party (Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited) managed by another Plan Administrator totalling Baht 2,978.48 million arising from converting unpaid accrued interest and guarantee fees of seven subsidiaries into the Company’s share capital without determining term of repayment and interest rate charged.  Those related parties are in the process of plan implementation.  The current Plan Administrator also advised that such short-term loans to related parties are were included in amend the rehabilitation plan. On November 10, 2004, the amended plan was approved by the Central Bankruptcy Court and please see Note 31 in the financial statements. Furthermore, the Company also has overdue trade accounts receivable from subsidiaries (as discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements).  The current Plan Administrator believes that the above debtors have ability to repay their debts. In addition, seventeen subsidiaries, in which the Company has invested, have been experiencing uncertainty as to their ability to continue as going concerns. Furthermore, the Company may have contingent liabilities as described in Note 27 to the financial statements.
However, the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries and the plan implementation still continue as normal.  Please also see Note 31 to the financial statements.  

In 2003, the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and the Company’s financial statements were prepared on the going concern basis which assumed that the Company and subsidiaries would continue in existence.  The validity of this assumption is dependent upon the Company’s and subsidiaries’ ability to meet their financial requirements and the success of future operations.  If the Company and its subsidiaries were unable to continue in existence, adjustments would have had to have been made to reduce the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any additional liabilities that might arise and to reclassify assets and liabilities. 

4.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (as referred to “TPI Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  In assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are taken into account.  The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies.  The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the total recognized gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in as associate, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

4.2 Use of estimates

In order to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand, the Plan Administrator needs to make estimates and set assumptions that affect income, expenditure, assets and liabilities in order to disclose information on the valuation of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.  Actual outcomes may, therefore, differ from the estimates used.
The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

4.3 Foreign currencies transactions
Foreign currencies transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction or near the transaction date.

The assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses on foreign exchange are recognized income or expenses in the statements of income.
4.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity price risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities.  Derivative financial statements are not used for trading purposes.  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.
Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at cost.  Subsequently, they are stated at fair value.  The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognized in the statements of income. 
In the case of forward exchange contracts, the Company translates the outstanding amounts under those forward exchange contracts at the year end by using the fair value of forward exchange contracts of which are quoted market price at the balance sheet date.  Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are treated as income or expense in the statement of income.

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses.  
Borrowing costs incurred relating to plant under construction and machinery under installation are capitalized.  The period for construction and installation includes the testing period which is generally 5 to 12 months until the time the construction is substantially complete or the certificate of acceptance is approved, whichever date is earlier.  Substantial completion is based on consideration of actual machinery capacity for each month as compared with expected full capacity.  Generally, the Company has estimated substantial completion at approximately 70% to 80%.

Revalued assets
Revaluations are performed by independent professional valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

The revaluation is based on the market value and the estimated gross replacement cost depreciated to reflect the unexpired service potential of the assets having paid due regard to its useful life, condition and obsolescence.  

Costs of building and machinery subject to revaluation are depreciated according to the original useful life of the relevant assets from the commencement dates of such assets’ utilization.  

Revaluation surplus for land, buildings and improvement, and machinery and equipment is included in shareholders’ equity.  Revaluation surplus for buildings and improvement, and machinery and equipment is transferred directly to deficit when the surplus is realized.  Loss from revaluation is recognized in the statements of income.

The revaluation surpluses on land, buildings and machinery are recognized as income to the extent that they reverse the revaluation decreases of the same assets previously recognized as an expense.
In 2001, the Plan Administrator of the Company and subsidiaries commissioned an updated revaluation of land, buildings and improvement, and machinery determined by independent appraisers.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group.  All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the statements of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.  The estimated useful lives are as follows:
	Land and work in-progress
	No depreciation

	Buildings and structures
	20 - 40  years

	Machinery and pipe (for HDPE)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 1,440,000 tonnes

	Machinery and pipe (for HDPE expansion)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 1,600,000 tonnes

	Machinery and pipe (for PP)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 3,000,000 tonnes

	Machinery and pipe (for PP expansion)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 3,600,000 tonnes

	Machinery and pipe (for PP expansion)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 900,000 tonnes

	Machinery and pipe (for EPS)
	Production units estimated to be a total of 450,000 tonnes

	Machinery (for ABS)
	30 years

	Machinery (for Polyurethane)
	Production units

	Other machinery
	10 - 30 years

	Mechanical equipment
	8 - 20 years

	Tools and factory equipment
	10 years

	Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
	5 - 10 years

	Vehicles
	10 years


4.6 Investments 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the equity method.

Investments in equity securities

Marketable equity securities are classified as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.  Any resultant gains or losses are recognized in equity, except for impairment losses, until disposal whereupon the gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income.

Equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less impairment losses.
Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together with the associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognized in the statements of income.

4.7 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables (including balances with related parties) are stated at their invoice value less impairment losses.

Allowance for doubtful accounts of the Company and subsidiaries is provided on estimated collection losses on receivables, based on collection experience of the Company and subsidiaries together with a review of the current financial position of each existing receivable and a review of aged outstanding receivables.

The Company and its subsidiaries recorded the allowance for doubtful accounts on trade accounts receivable at the rate of 50% of overdue more than 3 months to 6 months and at the rate of 100% of overdue more than 6 months and receivable in the litigation at the rate of 100%. In 2003, except for one subsidiary (TPI Oil Co., Ltd.) recorded allowance for doubtful account for overdue more than 3 months trade accounts receivable at the rate of 50% and receivable in the litigation at the rate of 100%.
4.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  

Finished goods from the downstream petrochemical industry, spare parts and repair materials are stated at average cost.  

Raw materials and finished goods from refinery, upstream petrochemical industry are stated at cost determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.

Costs of inventory consisting of total purchased cost and other expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Allowance is made for all deteriorated, obsolete and slow-moving inventories as follows:
	Type
	
	Rate of setting up allowance for decline in value of inventory

	The balance of spare parts at the end of year
	
	3%

	The balance of repair materials at the end of year
	
	3%

	Obsolete and dead stock over 2 years of chemical
	
	100%

	The balance of chemical at the end of year
	
	3%


4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand and at banks including fixed deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of bank deposits pledged as collateral.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

4.10 Revenue 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.  No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs, the probable return of goods or the continuing management involvement with the goods.

Interest income is recognized in the statement of income as it accrues.  Dividend income is recognized in the statement of income on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is established which in the case of quoted securities is usually the ex-dividend date.

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

4.11 Expenses

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale.  

4.12 Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax for each year is recognized on the accrual basis which is based on the taxable profit for the year.

4.13 Other Non-Current Assets

Certain other non-current assets consisted of:-

(
Leasehold land which is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses and is amortized by the straight-line method over a period of 20-30 years.

(
Dredging expenses are stated at cost and amortized by the straight-line method over a period of 20 years as from January 1999.

(
Deposits for land represent the amount net of impairment losses. 
(
Rental deposit for office building represents the amount net of impairment losses.

(
Deferred charges, which are included in other non-current assets, represent water mains and computer development expenses and are stated at cost and amortized by the straight-line method over periods of 5 to 20 years.

(
Notes receivable on land, which are included in other non-current assets, represent the amount net of allowance for doubtful accounts.

4.14 Basic Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to common shareholders by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (7,848,911,211 shares).

5.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Company has transactions with its subsidiaries, associates and other related companies, the former Plan Administrator (Effective Planners Limited in compliance with the rehabilitation plan until April 21, 2003), the joint temporary Plan Administrator (the debtor and the Official Receiver from April 21, 2003 to July 10, 2003) and the current Plan Administrator (the Ministry of Finance or group of persons as representatives from the Ministry of Finance from July 11, 2003 until the present).  Certain portions of the Company’s assets, liabilities, sales, other income, costs of sales, selling and administrative expenses and other expenses represent transactions with subsidiaries, associates, other related companies, the former Plan Administrator, the joint temporary Plan Administrator and the current Plan Administrator. These parties are related through common shareholders and/or directorships and/or management control.

Related parties are those parties linked to companies in the Group by the former Plan Administrator, the joint temporary Plan Administrator and the current Plan Administrator control.  Transactions with related parties are conducted at prices based on market prices or at contractually agreed prices where no market prices exist.  Significant balances at each balance sheet date, and transactions for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, with related parties are as follows:
	
	Baht
	
	

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only
	
	Policy of

	Subsidiaries:
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Pricing

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales
	-
	
	-
	
	22,157,264,753
	
	21,995,269,205
	
	Market price

	Purchase of goods
	-
	
	-
	
	13,979,422,063
	
	9,454,471,005
	
	Market price

	Interest income


	-


	
	-


	
	161,524,879

	
	163,957,404


	
	1 - MLR+2%, LIBOR+1%-LIBOR+2%

	Interest expense


	-


	
	-


	
	152,641,583

	
	161,376,453


	
	1 - MLR+2%, LIBOR+1%-LIBOR+2%

	Other income
	-
	
	-
	
	8,086,464
	
	10,796,177
	
	

	Selling and administrative
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   expenses
	-
	
	-
	
	252,983,233
	
	157,270,085
	
	

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales
	429,361,085
	
	214,600,443
	
	428,267,955
	
	211,422,681
	
	Market price

	Purchase of goods
	1,135,975
	
	1,077,246
	
	-
	
	-
	
	Market price

	Other income
	3,586,057
	
	3,421,689
	
	1,739,281
	
	1,571,772
	
	


	Selling and administrative
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   expenses
	51,563,519
	
	39,831,419
	
	47,199,760
	
	36,198,318
	
	


	
	Baht
	
	

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only
	
	Policy of

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Pricing

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales
	6,721,495,892
	
	4,441,491,149
	
	6,709,525,089
	
	4,285,866,632
	
	Market price

	Purchase of goods
	476,118,077
	
	342,121,958
	
	270,122,483
	
	196,422,283
	
	Market price

	Interest income
	82,654,834
	
	65,381,642
	
	43,401,369
	
	35,952,015
	
	MLR+2%

	Interest expense
	-
	
	794,184
	
	-
	
	794,184
	
	

	Other income
	126,720,448
	
	163,848,723
	
	83,418,901
	
	159,337,923
	
	

	Selling and administrative
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   expenses
	146,840,158
	
	701,080,698
	
	108,051,906
	
	637,656,987
	
	

	Rehabilitation expenses
	606,147,637
	
	488,194,978
	
	605,872,896
	
	486,188,481
	
	Contract price


Those rehabilitation expenses of the Company and its six subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Bank charge
	12,325,977
	
	15,347,663
	
	12,325,977
	
	15,347,663

	Security expense
	-
	
	4,014,690
	
	-
	
	4,014,690

	Legal consulting fee
	70,884,307
	
	100,447,945
	
	70,609,566
	
	99,947,144

	Creditor committee fee
	48,791,367
	
	48,907,633
	
	48,791,367
	
	48,907,633

	Plan administration and other
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   consulting fee
	472,484,036
	
	318,724,846
	
	472,484,036
	
	317,629,150

	Other expenses
	    1,661,950
	
	       752,201
	
	    1,661,950
	
	       342,201

	Total
	606,147,637
	
	488,194,978
	
	605,872,896
	
	486,188,481


The meeting of current Plan Administrator resolved to pay the current Plan Administrator team and the advisor of the Plan Administrator the remuneration every month of Baht 5 million per month and meeting allowance of Baht 25,000 per meeting starting from July 11, 2003 onwards.

Basis of Oil Selling Price

The Company has determined the oil price structure with a subsidiary (TPI Oil Company Limited) from MOP’s (Mean of Platt’s) spot price to the average price of the former three day MOP’s spot price before the selling date plus selling expense.

Balances as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 with related parties:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Trade Account Receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Form part of the trade accounts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	receivable in the balance sheets)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	1,152,280,168
	
	698,888,396

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	231,891,846
	
	326,710,532

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	160,019,196
	
	139,190,161

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	8,269,998
	
	7,838,758


	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	13,684,903
	
	10,588,643
	
	13,681,468
	
	10,585,296

	Thai International Tanker Co., Ltd.
	1,732,063
	
	3,465,963
	
	1,540,105
	
	3,465,962

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	8,340
	
	4,520
	
	-
	
	-

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	553,601,544
	
	392,779,873
	
	552,299,932
	
	391,968,700

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	25,587,118
	
	20,279,065
	
	25,587,118
	
	20,278,913

	Thai Special Steel Industry PCL.
	74,920,084
	
	55,776,302
	
	74,794,375
	
	55,710,615

	Others
	128,395,292
	
	  71,428,851
	
	    127,708,749
	
	     70,633,992

	Total
	797,929,344
	
	554,323,217
	
	2,348,072,955
	
	1,725,271,325


	
	Baht
	
	

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only
	
	Policy of

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Pricing

	Short-term Loans to Related Parties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term Loans
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	MLR + 2%,

	(Cayman Island) Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	3,845,258
	
	3,685,099
	
	LIBOR + 2%

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	

-

	
	246,190,877
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	22,111,000
	
	2,018,427,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	

-

	
	39,737,800
	
	LIBOR + 2%

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	2,740,509
	
	366,664,309
	
	MLR + 2%

	Rayong TPI Services Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	74,160,000
	
	74,160,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	3,482,000,731
	
	3,482,000,731
	
	3,475,700,731
	
	3,475,700,731
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	828,685,580
	
	828,685,580
	
	828,685,580
	
	828,685,580
	
	MLR + 2%

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	768,596,556
	
	768,596,556
	
	408,196,556
	
	408,196,556
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	1,685,600,000
	
	1,685,600,000
	
	1,685,600,000
	
	1,685,600,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI Automation System Co., Ltd.
	       1,092,000
	
	       1,092,000
	
	       1,092,000
	
	       1,092,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	Total Short-term Loans
	6,765,974,867
	
	6,765,974,867
	
	6,502,131,634
	
	9,148,139,952
	
	

	Accrued Interest Receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Cayman Island) Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	1,328,557
	
	1,334,194
	
	

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	238,870,239
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	5,452,035
	
	1,264,391,628
	
	

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	76,033,491
	
	

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	781,327
	
	581,786
	
	

	Rayong TPI Services Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	6,200,868
	
	952,778
	
	

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	1,707,636,592
	
	1,707,150,953
	
	1,705,491,712
	
	1,705,491,712
	
	

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	440,199,398
	
	440,199,398
	
	440,199,398
	
	440,199,398
	
	

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	300,549,853
	
	220,603,446
	
	167,898,274
	
	126,244,898
	
	

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	965,328,448
	
	965,328,448
	
	965,328,448
	
	965,328,448
	
	

	TPI Automation System Co., Ltd.
	732,767
	
	732,767
	
	732,767
	
	732,767
	
	

	Others
	         153,497
	
	         153,497
	
	          153,496
	
	          153,496
	
	

	Total Accrued Interest Receivables
	3,414,600,555
	
	3,334,168,509
	
	3,293,566,882
	
	4,820,314,835
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	Baht
	
	

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only
	
	Policy of

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Pricing

	Other Receivables and Advances
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Cayman Island) Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	5,108,218
	
	4,344,008
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	68,679,694
	
	1,206,204,621
	
	

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	26,154,323
	
	508,394,609
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	55,923,329
	
	1,275,580,742
	
	

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	2,430,538
	
	58,650,322
	
	

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	69,722,626
	
	

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	60,300
	
	463,537
	
	

	Rayong TPI Services Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	25,489,700
	
	29,350,806
	
	

	TPI Refinery (1997) Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	287,040
	
	287,040
	
	

	TPI Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	287,290
	
	287,290
	
	

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	11,809,217
	
	11,804,287
	
	

	Rayong Port Service Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	23,434
	
	23,434
	
	

	International Plastic Trading Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	21,000
	
	22,260
	
	

	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	5,600
	
	5,600
	
	

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	460
	
	460
	
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	100
	
	

	TPI Oil (1997) Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	200
	
	

	TPI Oil (2001) Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	45,000
	
	90,000
	
	

	TPI Philippines Vinyl Corp.
	-
	
	-
	
	850,000
	
	250,000
	
	

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	5,310,840
	
	5,179,835
	
	4,977,468
	
	4,846,464
	
	

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	160,650
	
	160,650
	
	160,650
	
	160,650
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	2,056,038
	
	1,947,489
	
	1,629,932
	
	1,471,404
	
	

	Kapuluan Holding Corp.
	-
	
	2,418,754
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	941,871,777
	
	846,972,575
	
	941,871,777
	
	846,972,575
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	202,657
	
	1,021,924
	
	176,256
	
	146,276
	
	

	Khemjira Transport Co., Ltd.
	38,445,712
	
	9,613,282
	
	4,135,680
	
	4,424,663
	
	

	Rayong Acetylene Co., Ltd.
	16,200
	
	2,271,700
	
	16,200
	
	2,271,700
	
	

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	1,453,960
	
	1,453,960
	
	1,453,960
	
	1,453,960
	
	

	TPI Automation System Co., Ltd.
	96,660
	
	96,660
	
	96,660
	
	96,660
	
	

	Plastic Transport Co., Ltd.
	108,191,081
	
	48,888,784
	
	105,712,084
	
	48,311,784
	
	

	Others
	2,805,877
	
	2,770,307
	
	2,801,267
	
	2,762,885
	
	

	Advance to the former management
	      25,828,158
	
	      25,828,158
	
	       25,828,158
	
	       25,828,158
	
	

	Total Other Receivables and Advances
	 1,126,439,610
	
	    948,624,078
	
	  1,286,035,235
	
	  4,104,229,121
	
	

	Total Short-term Loans to Related Parties
	11,307,015,032
	
	11,048,767,454
	
	11,081,733,751
	
	18,072,683,908
	
	

	Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(9,122,009,294)
	
	(9,128,163,916)
	
	 (9,122,009,294)
	
	 (9,128,163,916)
	
	

	Short-term Loans to Related Parties - Net
	 2,185,005,738
	
	 1,920,603,538
	
	  1,959,724,457
	
	  8,944,519,992
	
	


Some of the related companies have been under the plan implementation.

Receivables under the rehabilitation plan – related parties as at December 31, 2004 as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	
	
	Current portion of receivables under the rehabilitation plan
	
	Receivables under the rehabilitation plan
	
	Total

	Receivables under the rehabilitation plan
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
 - principal
	
	-
	
	5,553,013,993
	
	5,553,013,993

	
 - accrued interest income
	
	17,420,617
	
	      2,686,640
	
	    20,107,257

	
	
	17,420,617
	
	5,555,700,633
	
	5,573,121,250


	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	Subsidiaries
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	1,113,220,743

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	717,450,530

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	3,249,202,309

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	53,624,985

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	72,865,333

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	   366,757,350

	Total
	5,573,121,250


And please see Note 3 to the financial statements.

On July 30, 2002, the Company through the Plan Administrator (Effective Planners Ltd.) demanded repayment of amounts due by Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd., TPI EOEG Co., Ltd. and TPI Holding Co., Ltd. under promissory notes repayable on demand including interest.  The debtors have not met the demand and the matter has been referred to the Official Receiver for recovery under Section 90/39 of the Bankruptcy Act.

On April 10, 2003, the Company through the Plan Administrator (Effective Planners Ltd.) took an action for damages according to the Public Company Act against three of the Company’s directors to compensate the Company for damages totalling Baht 1,349.68 million suffered as a result of a 90 year rental agreement which TPI entered into with Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd. which is a related party of those directors.  In addition, such lease agreement had not been registered with the Land Department.

Later on August 29, 2003, the Court instructed that the Plan Administrator (Effective Planners Ltd.) had no power to take the action against those three directors.  Later, the Company appealed to the South Bangkok Civil Court.  Up to the present, the case is in the process of adjudication by the Appeal Court.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, allowance for doubtful accounts amounting to Baht 9,122.01 million and Baht 9,128.16 million, respectively in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements, consisted of :-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   (Cayman Island) Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	10,282,032
	
	9,363,300

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	11,623,539
	
	11,618,609

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	5,174,464,225
	
	5,181,542,510
	
	5,174,464,225
	
	5,181,542,510

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	1,269,045,627
	
	1,269,045,627
	
	1,269,045,627
	
	1,269,045,627

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	2,652,382,408
	
	2,652,382,408
	
	2,652,382,408
	
	2,652,382,408

	TPI Automation Systems Co., Ltd.
	1,919,868
	
	1,919,868
	
	1,919,868
	
	1,919,868

	Others
	     24,197,166
	
	     23,273,503
	
	      2,291,595
	
	       2,291,594

	Total
	9,122,009,294
	
	9,128,163,916
	
	9,122,009,294
	
	9,128,163,916


Movements of short-term loans to related parties for the years ended December 31, 2004:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated


	
	Associates
	
	Related Companies
	
	Total

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	4,310,686,311
	
	2,455,288,556
	
	6,765,974,867

	Increase during the year
	-
	
	

-

	
	-

	Decrease during the year
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-


	Balance as at December 31, 2004
	4,310,686,311
	
	2,455,288,556
	
	  6,765,974,867


	
	Baht

	
	The Company only

	
	Subsidiaries
	
	Associates
	
	Related Companies
	
	Total

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	2,748,865,085
	
	4,304,386,311
	
	2,094,888,556
	
	9,148,139,952

	Increase during the year
	2,355,158
	
	-
	
	-
	
	2,355,158

	Decrease during the year
	(2,648,363,476)
	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	(2,648,363,476)

	Balance as at December 31, 2004
	   102,856,767
	
	4,304,386,311
	
	2,094,888,556
	
	  6,502,131,634


Movements of short-term loans to related parties for the years ended December 31, 2003:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated


	
	Associates
	
	Related Companies
	
	Total

	Balance as at December 31, 2002
	4,310,686,311
	
	2,569,626,113
	
	6,880,312,424

	Increase during the year
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Decrease during the year
	

-

	
	 (114,337,557)
	
	  (114,337,557)

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	4,310,686,311
	
	2,455,288,556
	
	6,765,974,867


	
	Baht

	
	The Company only

	
	Subsidiaries
	
	Associates
	
	Related Companies
	
	Total

	Balance as at December 31, 2002
	2,901,259,743
	
	4,304,386,311
	
	2,208,862,413
	
	9,414,508,467

	Increase during the year
	1,002,936
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1,002,936

	Decrease during the year
	(153,397,594)
	
	

-

	
	 (113,973,857)
	
	  (267,371,451)

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	2,748,865,085
	
	4,304,386,311
	
	2,094,888,556
	
	9,148,139,952


As at December 31, 2003, short-term loans to seven related parties amounting to Baht 2,978.48 million resulted from the conversion of the seven subsidiaries’ unpaid accrued interest and guarantee fees payable to banks into the Company’s share capital in 2001.  The term of repayment and interest rate charged has not been determined. And please see Note 3 in the financial statements.
As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, advances to six members of the former management represent the payment of salary to the former management approximately of Baht 25.83 million.  Such payment has been recorded as advances because the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company intends to recover this amount from the recipients.  In additional, as at December 31, 2004, the Company had recorded accrued salary to such former management of Baht 27.21 million.
Investments recorded by the equity method as at December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Investments in subsidiaries
	-
	
	-
	
	2,173,165,329
	
	1,562,823,557

	Investments in associates
	23,688,093
	
	19,259,031
	
	
 
-

	
	
 
-


	Total
	23,688,093
	
	19,259,031
	
	2,173,165,329
	
	1,562,823,557


Please see Note 10 to the financial statements.

Long-term investments in related parties as at December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	General investments
	7,314,527
	
	7,314,527
	
	7,314,527
	
	7,314,527

	Equity securities
	7,041,942,007
	
	11,466,316,260
	
	7,035,444,055
	
	11,455,735,524

	Total
	7,049,256,534
	
	11,473,630,787
	
	7,042,758,582
	
	11,463,050,051


Please see Note 10 to the financial statements

Notes receivables on land - related parties as at December 31, 2004 and 2003, which are included in other non-current assets, consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Thai Special Steel Public Company Limited
	1,739,431,251
	
	1,739,431,251

	Less Allowance for doubtful account
	1,739,431,251
	
	1,739,431,251

	Total
	
 
-

	
	
 
-



The above notes receivable on land represents non-interest bearing notes, are due in:-

	
	Baht

	
Year
	2004
	
	2003

	2003
	550,000,000
	
	550,000,000

	2004
	700,000,000
	
	700,000,000

	2005
	   489,431,251
	
	   489,431,251

	
	1,739,431,251
	
	1,739,431,251


Rental deposits for office buildings - related parties as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.:-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance of rental deposit under the contract
	898,562,651
	
	909,463,191
	
	804,446,108
	
	814,216,151

	Less impairment losses
	895,560,203
	
	905,513,206
	
	804,446,108
	
	814,216,151

	
	   3,002,448
	
	    3,949,985
	
	
-

	
	
-



These rental deposits relate to several 90 year advance lease agreements for office space in TPI Tower which is owned by Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.  Subsequent to March 31, 2003, an action for damages according to the Public Company Act had been taken against 3 of the Company’s directors to compensate the Company for damages suffered as a result of 90 years rental agreement as the above mentioned.  Later on August 29, 2003 the Court ordered that the Planner (Effective Planners Ltd.) had no power to take the action against those three directors.

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Trade Accounts Payable
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Form part of the trade accounts payable
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	in the balance sheets)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	3,728,482,172
	
	2,843,679,202

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	354,620,923
	
	165,483,262

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	1,322,570
	
	137,949

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai International Tanker Co., Ltd.
	3,561,345
	
	4,019,871
	
	3,561,345
	
	4,019,871

	Other Related Companies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	27,359,208
	
	23,569,799
	
	27,359,207
	
	23,504,103

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	227,539,802
	
	240,676,871
	
	227,539,802
	
	240,676,871

	Thai Nitrate Co., Ltd.
	8,467,033
	
	5,878,211
	
	8,468,033
	
	5,878,211

	United Grain Industry Co., Ltd.
	1,342,700
	
	333,602
	
	-
	
	9,870

	Others
	  39,462,890
	
	  24,305,397
	
	      1,231,471
	
	         913,923

	Total
	307,732,978
	
	298,783,751
	
	4,352,585,523
	
	3,284,303,262


	
	Baht
	
	

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only
	
	Policy of

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	pricing

	Short-term Loans from Related Parties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term Loans
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	1,541,340,000
	
	1,541,340,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	269,584,000
	
	269,584,000
	
	MLR + 2%

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	    289,436,343


	
	MLR + 2%, LIBOR + 2%

	Total Short-term Loans 
	

-

	
	

-

	
	1,810,924,000
	
	2,100,360,343
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accrued Interest Expense
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	461,325,271
	
	342,510,128
	
	

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	81,511,952
	
	60,730,903
	
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	105,266,531
	
	

	Other Related Companies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	1,533,817
	
	744,222
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	21,170,591
	
	21,158,700
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	Others
	    2,098,675
	
	     996,561
	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

	Total Accrued Interest Expense
	24,803,083
	
	22,899,483
	
	 542,837,223
	
	    508,507,562
	
	

	Other Payables and Advances
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subsidiaries: 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	1,010
	
	-
	
	

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	764,723
	
	457,380
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	102,250,761
	
	

	Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,661,789
	
	

	Rayong TPI Service Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	8,574,032
	
	17,884,743
	
	

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	185,678
	
	185,678
	
	

	International Plastic Trading Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	23,100
	
	24,200
	
	

	TPI Oil (2001) Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	620,000
	
	

	Associates:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.
	12,232,251
	
	4,707,291
	
	11,705,685
	
	4,496,396
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	703,925
	
	1,107,358
	
	703,925
	
	1,107,358
	
	

	Kapuluan Holding Corp.
	-
	
	2,535
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	Other Related Companies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	39,040,709
	
	24,141,359
	
	39,040,709
	
	24,141,359
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	5,482,116
	
	5,115,084
	
	14,728
	
	11,984
	
	

	Khemjira Transport Co., Ltd.
	32,405,556
	
	7,641,968
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	2,032,142
	
	852,182
	
	-
	
	-
	
	

	Plastic Transport Co., Ltd.
	136,560,872
	
	43,736,335
	
	136,560,180
	
	43,398,781
	
	

	UHDE (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
	-
	
	1,353,794
	
	-
	
	1,353,794
	
	

	TPI Concrete Co., Ltd.
	575,649
	
	440,188
	
	444,514
	
	258,131
	
	

	Others
	  50,223,665
	
	  21,142,148
	
	              1,559
	
	               1,559
	
	

	Total Other Payables and Advances
	279,256,885
	
	110,240,242
	
	   198,019,843
	
	   199,853,913
	
	

	Short-term Loans from Related Parties
	304,059,968
	
	133,139,725
	
	2,551,781,066
	
	2,808,721,818
	
	


Movements of short-term loans from related parties in the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004:

	
	
	Baht

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	
	2,100,360,343

	Increase during the year
	
	-

	Decrease during the year
	
	  (289,436,343)

	Balance as at December 31, 2004
	
	1,810,924,000


Movements of short-term loans from related parties in the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2003:

	
	
	Baht

	Balance as at December 31, 2002
	
	2,109,647,330

	Increase during the year
	
	-

	Decrease during the year
	
	   (19,286,987)

	Balance as at December 31, 2003
	
	2,100,360,343


Creditors under the rehabilitation plan – related parties as at December 31, 2004 as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	
	
	Current portion of creditors under the rehabilitation plan
	
	Creditors under the rehabilitation plan
	
	Total

	Creditors under the rehabilitation plan
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
 - principal
	
	-
	
	286,595,523
	
	286,595,523

	
 - accrued interest expenses
	
	

-

	
	

-

	
	

-


	
	
	

-

	
	286,595,523
	
	286,595,523


	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	Subsidiary of subsidiary
	

	TPI Internet Portal Co., Ltd.
	286,595,523


And please see Note 3 to the financial statements.

Policy to set up allowance for doubtful accounts covering amount receivable from and loan to related parties of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on estimated collection losses on receivables, based on collection experience of the Company and subsidiaries together with a review of the current financial position of each existing receivable.

Please see Note 27 to the financial statements for obligations and guarantees under agreements with related parties of the Company and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, there are offsets between receivables and short-term loans and payables and short-term loans with subsidiaries and related companies amounting to Baht 11,502.76 million and Baht 8,083.97 million, respectively.  Those offset transactions have been duly and legally made in accordance with the law of Thailand as confirmed by a letter from the attorney of the Company. 

For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, there are offsets between receivables and short-term loans and payables and short-term loans with a related company amounting to Baht 206.58 million and Baht 123.87 million, respectively.  The related party was under the rehabilitation plan managed by another Plan Administrator.  The 2004 offset transaction included the offset of Baht 102.16 million  which the related party did not accept the offset; therefore, assets and liabilities of the Company were understated with the same amount.  
6.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Cash and cash equivalents – Balance sheets
	6,288,459,195
	
	2,357,710,548
	
	5,666,636,478
	
	1,681,260,948

	Less Deposits at banks pledged
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	as collateral
	    22,129,348
	
	    21,868,542
	
	

-

	
	

-


	Cash and cash equivalents – cash flow 
	6,266,329,847
	
	2,335,842,006
	
	5,666,636,478
	
	1,681,260,948


7.
CURRENT INVESTMENTS – FIXED DEPOSITS

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, current investments as fixed deposits amounting to Baht 24.95 million and Baht 24.97 million, respectively in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements, are used as collateral for bank overdrafts as described in Note 30 to the financial statements.

8.
TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Notes receivable
	2,960,369,766
	
	937,851,787
	
	2,959,813,160
	
	936,918,367

	Trade accounts receivable
	3,325,980,545
	
	3,005,432,923
	
	4,470,219,969
	
	3,836,495,808

	Total 
	6,286,350,311
	
	3,943,284,710
	
	7,430,033,129
	
	4,773,414,175

	Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
	   197,680,381
	
	   194,915,883
	
	    86,276,759
	
	     77,315,095

	Trade Accounts Receivable - net 
	6,088,669,930
	
	3,748,368,827
	
	7,343,756,370
	
	4,696,099,080


Overdue trade accounts receivable (including trade accounts receivable from related parties) as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Overdue trade accounts receivable
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	From 1 month to 3 months
	454,956,394
	
	309,020,939
	
	587,893,624
	
	367,734,031

	Over 3 months up to 6 months
	16,667,687
	
	7,425,887
	
	16,266,905
	
	75,090,998

	Over 6 months up to 12 months
	44,385,024
	
	1,233,476
	
	43,319,365
	
	1,339,310

	Over 12 months
	186,980,009
	
	190,696,955
	
	  85,555,794
	
	  79,504,592

	Total
	702,989,114
	
	508,377,257
	
	733,035,688
	
	523,668,931

	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	197,680,381
	
	194,915,883
	
	  86,276,759
	
	  77,315,095


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, overdue trade accounts receivable amounted to Baht 702.99 million and Baht 508.38 million in the consolidated financial statements, and Baht 733.04 million and Baht 523.67 million in the Company’s financial statements, respectively.  The Plan Administrator of the Company and its subsidiaries believes that the above debtors have ability to repay the entire outstanding balances, and the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate.
9. INVENTORIES

Inventories as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Finished goods
	13,213,146,365
	
	10,091,857,410
	
	12,525,047,093
	
	9,502,062,181

	Less Allowance for decline in value
	   (120,538,336)
	
	

-

	
	   (120,538,336)
	
	

-


	
	13,092,608,029
	
	10,091,857,410
	
	12,404,508,757
	
	9,502,062,181

	Work in progress
	170,133,179
	
	178,421,761
	
	44,591,487
	
	90,474,771

	Raw materials and chemicals
	5,927,551,166
	
	2,711,818,027
	
	5,367,850,783
	
	2,329,336,665

	Less Allowance for decline in value
	   (39,661,538)
	
	   (33,100,588)
	
	   (27,542,828)
	
	   (24,114,867)

	
	5,887,889,628
	
	2,678,717,439
	
	5,340,307,955
	
	2,305,221,798

	Oil
	29,577,726
	
	22,784,838
	
	18,534,315
	
	17,941,188

	Spare parts
	1,511,269,460
	
	1,306,483,117
	
	1,321,959,154
	
	1,149,220,864

	Less Allowance for decline in value
	   (44,662,512)
	
	    (39,422,950)
	
	   (39,013,431)
	
	    (34,033,176)

	
	1,466,606,948
	
	1,267,060,167
	
	1,282,945,723
	
	1,115,187,688

	Repair materials
	310,686,117
	
	277,827,135
	
	205,242,392
	
	174,935,137

	Less Allowance for decline in value
	   (28,626,196)
	
	   (27,878,097)
	
	   (25,595,222)
	
	   (24,953,491)

	
	289,059,921
	
	249,949,038
	
	179,647,170
	
	149,981,646

	Raw materials and chemicals in transit
	2,494,129,311
	
	4,322,977,716
	
	2,453,596,066
	
	4,296,075,441

	Materials and spare parts in transit
	      70,625,629
	
	      56,711,856
	
	      61,354,384
	
	      46,061,191

	Inventories - net
	23,493,630,371
	
	18,868,480,225
	
	21,785,485,857
	
	17,523,005,904


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the carrying amounts of finished goods and raw materials valued at LIFO method in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements, respectively compared with their net realizable values are as follows:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated

	
	Carrying amount of inventory valued by LIFO method
	
	Net realizable value
	
	Difference

	2004
	
	
	
	
	

	Finished goods
	5,327,735,444
	
	6,783,513,577
	
	1,455,778,133

	Raw materials
	4,214,538,561
	
	  4,171,042,955
	
	    (43,495,606)

	Total
	9,542,274,005
	
	10,954,556,532
	
	1,412,282,527

	
	
	
	
	
	

	2003
	
	
	
	
	

	Finished goods
	4,399,737,782
	
	5,463,324,786
	
	1,063,587,004

	Raw materials
	1,799,562,387
	
	1,886,194,057
	
	    86,631,670

	Total
	6,199,300,169
	
	7,349,518,843
	
	1,150,218,674


	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	
	Carrying amount of inventory valued by LIFO method
	
	Net realizable value
	
	Difference

	2004
	
	
	
	
	

	Finished goods
	5,085,411,617
	
	6,457,492,457
	
	1,372,080,840

	Raw materials
	4,214,538,561
	
	  4,171,042,955
	
	    (43,495,606)

	Total
	9,299,950,178
	
	10,628,535,412
	
	1,328,585,234

	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	Baht

	
	The Company Only

	
	Carrying amount of inventory valued by LIFO method
	
	Net realizable value
	
	Difference

	2003
	
	
	
	
	

	Finished goods
	4,012,346,985
	
	4,889,266,846
	
	876,919,861

	Raw materials
	1,799,562,387
	
	1,886,194,057
	
	    86,631,670

	Total
	5,811,909,372
	
	6,775,460,903
	
	963,551,531


10. INVESTMENTS
Investments Recorded by the Equity Method

Investments recorded by the equity method comprise investments in shares of subsidiaries and associates in the Company’s financial statements; and investments in associates in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.  

The financial information for valuation of investments in subsidiaries is based on the audited financial statements of subsidiaries except as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

When the losses of subsidiaries are recognized in the consolidated financial statements, the Company will recognize the full amount of the Company’s share in the subsidiaries’ losses.

If the losses of subsidiaries or associated companies are recognized by the equity method, the Company will recognize such losses not exceeding its carrying amount of investment in those companies.  Except in the case when the Company has commitments or contingent liabilities on guarantees to the subsidiaries or associates, the Company’s equity in excess of investment value according to outstanding debts under such commitment and/or guarantees is shown as non-current liabilities in the Company’s balance sheets. 

Investments recorded by the equity method as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:







Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up


Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Equity Method
Equity Method


Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	Holding
	Coordinated
	351,515,900
	100
	351,515,900
	-
	-

	 (Cayman Island) Ltd.
	company
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	Producing and

distributing
	Coordinated shareholder 
	2,500,000,000
	99.99
	2,499,999,930
	-
	625,392,062

	
	ABS, SAN,
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	EPS & PS
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	Distributing
	Coordinated
	2,000,000,000
	99.99
	1,999,999,300
	-
	917,208,976

	
	gasoline, diesel
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	&lube oil product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	300,000,000
	99.99
	299,999,300
	-
	168,482,984

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	flexible and
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	rigid polyol
	
	
	
	
	
	








Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up


Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Equity Method
Equity Method


Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	Thai Polyurethane Industry
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	150,000,000
	99.99
	149,999,300
	-
	45,081,765

	Co., Ltd.
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	polyurethane
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Philippines Vinyl 
	PVC product
	Coordinated
	 Peso17,000,000
	99.99
	17,202,372
	-
	-

	
Corp.
	distributor
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Asian Dragon Oil 
	Joint venture
	Coordinated
	 Peso     250,000
	99.99
	251,006
	-
	-

	Refinery Corp.
	of found
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	refinery plant
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	in Philippines
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	4,100,000,000
	99.99
	4,099,999,930
	-
	-

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	petrochemical
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	School
	Coordinated
	750,000,000
	99.99
	749,999,930
	-
	288,128,681

	
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant and
	Coordinated
	3,342,000,000
	99.99
	3,341,999,930
	-
	127,947,033

	
	distributor
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong TPI Service 
	Guard service
	Coordinated
	200,000
	99.65
	199,300
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Port Service 
	Port service
	Coordinated
	100,000
	99.93
	24,983
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	Public utility 
	Coordinated
	100,000
	99.30
	99,300
	-
	-

	
	service
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	International Plastic 
	Trading 
	Coordinated
	4,000,000
	99.02
	3,763,138
	-
	709,445

	Trading Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant
	Coordinated
	250,000
	99.99
	249,983
	-
	214,383

	
  
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	

-

	2,173,165,329

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Associates
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai International 
	Shipping
	Coordinated
	281,000,000
	49.99
	140,499,922
	-
	-

	
Tanker Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	Distributing 
	Coordinated
	10,000,000
	48.94
	4,894,000
	23,688,093
	-

	
	ABS product
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Kapuluan Holding Corp.
	Manufacturing 
	Coordinated
	 Peso   500,000
	39.99
	198,247
	-
	-

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	petrochemical
	
	
	
	
	
	

	

	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Phil Thai Holdings Corp.
	Holding 
	Coordinated
	 Peso 100,000
	39.99
	39,520
	-
	-

	
	company
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises.
	Real estate
	Coordinated
	180,000,000
	25.00
	   74,347,200
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	Distribution
	Coordinated
	1,000,000
	25.00
	250,000
	-
	-

	

	petrochemical
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	

	products
	
	
	
	
	


	



	Total Investments Recorded by the Equity Method
	
	
	
	   23,688,093
	2,173,165,329


Financial information on these associates was not made available. Accordingly, the investments have been recorded at nil value.

Investments recorded by the equity method as at December 31, 2003 consisted of:







Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up


Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Equity Method
Equity Method


Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Petrochemical Industry
	Holding
	Coordinated
	351,515,900
	100
	351,515,900
	-
	-

	 (Cayman Island) Ltd.
	company
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai ABS Co., Ltd.
	Producing and

distributing
	Coordinated shareholder 
	2,500,000,000
	99.99
	2,499,999,930
	-
	11,272,429

	
	ABS, SAN,
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	EPS & PS
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Oil Co., Ltd.
	Distributing
	Coordinated
	2,000,000,000
	99.99
	1,999,999,300
	-
	1,059,435,889

	
	gasoline, diesel
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	&lube oil product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polyol Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	300,000,000
	99.99
	299,999,300
	-
	16,857,794

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	flexible and
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	rigid polyol
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Polyurethane Industry
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	150,000,000
	99.99
	149,999,300
	-
	40,055,480

	Co., Ltd.
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	polyurethane
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Philippines Vinyl 
	PVC product
	Coordinated
	 Peso17,000,000
	99.99
	17,202,372
	-
	934,709

	
Corp.
	distributor
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Asian Dragon Oil 
	Joint venture
	Coordinated
	 Peso     250,000
	99.99
	251,006
	-
	-

	Refinery Corp.
	of found
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	refinery plant
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	in Philippines
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Aromatics PCL.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	4,100,000,000
	99.99
	4,099,999,930
	-
	-

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	petrochemical
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Technology Co., Ltd.
	School
	Coordinated
	750,000,000
	99.99
	749,999,930
	-
	302,592,245

	
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant and
	Coordinated
	3,342,000,000
	99.99
	3,341,999,930
	-
	130,762,134

	
	distributor
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong TPI Service 
	Guard service
	Coordinated
	200,000
	99.65
	199,300
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Port Service 
	Port service
	Coordinated
	100,000
	99.93
	24,983
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Infrastructure Co., Ltd.
	Public utility 
	Coordinated
	100,000
	99.30
	99,300
	-
	-

	
	service
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	International Plastic 
	Trading 
	Coordinated
	4,000,000
	99.02
	3,763,138
	-
	698,494

	Trading Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Energy Co., Ltd.
	Power plant
	Coordinated
	250,000
	99.99
	249,983
	-
	214,383

	
  
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	

-

	1,562,823,557

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	








Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up


Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Equity Method
Equity Method

Associates
Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	Thai International 
	Shipping
	Coordinated
	281,000,000
	49.99
	140,499,922
	-
	-

	
Tanker Co., Ltd.
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Sumika ABS Co., Ltd.
	Distributing 
	Coordinated
	10,000,000
	48.94
	4,894,000
	19,259,031
	-

	
	ABS product
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Kapuluan Holding Corp.
	Manufacturing 
	Coordinated
	 Peso   500,000
	39.99
	198,247
	-
	-

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	petrochemical
	
	
	
	
	
	

	

	product
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Phil Thai Holdings Corp.
	Holding 
	Coordinated
	 Peso 100,000
	39.99
	39,520
	-
	-

	
	company
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Pornchai Enterprises.
	Real estate
	Coordinated
	180,000,000
	25.00
	   74,347,200
	-
	-

	
Co., Ltd
	
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI EOEG Co., Ltd.
	Distribution
	Coordinated
	1,000,000
	25.00
	250,000
	-
	-

	

	petrochemical
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	

	products
	
	
	
	
	


	



	Total Investments Recorded by the Equity Method
	
	
	
	 19,259,031
	1,562,823,557


Financial information on these associates was not made available. Accordingly, the investments have been recorded at nil value.

Long-term Investments in Related Parties

Long-term investments in related parties as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:-





Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up

Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Cost/Market Price
Cost/Market Price

General investments
Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	Leasing of tank farm
	Coordinated 
	1,000,000,000
	99.99
	999,812,971
	-
	
-

	
	and chemical tank
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Special Steel PCL. 
	Producing,
	Coordinated
	4,220,000,000
	16.24
	673,350,000
	673,350,000
	673,350,000

	

	distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	steel
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Acetylene Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	115,000,000
	13.04
	15,000,000
	15,000,000
	15,000,000

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	acetylene gas
	
	
	
	
	
	

	United Grain Industry Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	550,000,000
	7.46
	41,045,800
	99,269,800
	41,045,800

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	packing materials
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	and sack sales
	
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	787,619,800
	729,395,800

	Less Impairment losses
	
	
	
	
	(780,305,273)
	(722,081,273)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	    7,314,527
	   7,314,527

	Equity Securities (Listed companies)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Available-for-Sales Securities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	8,075,000,000
	30.87 and 
	8,597,697,989
	7,040,954,007
	7,034,456,055

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	30.84
	
	
	

	
	cement
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	and LDPE
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bangkok Union Insurance PCL.
	Insurance
	Coordinated
	80,000,000
	0.50
	2,050,500
	988,000
	988,000

	
	business
	shareholder
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	7,041,942,007
	7,035,444,055

	Total Long-term Investments in Related Parties
	
	
	
	
	7,049,256,534
	7,042,758,582


Long-term investments in related parties as at December 31, 2003 consisted of:-





Consolidated
Company’s







Financial
Financial



Paid-up

Statements
Statements



Share Capital
% of
Cost Method
Cost/Market Price
Cost/Market Price


Type of Business
Relationship
Baht
Share holding
Baht
Baht
Baht

	General investments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Tank Terminal Co., Ltd.
	Leasing of tank farm
	Coordinated 
	1,000,000,000
	99.99
	999,812,971
	-
	
-

	
	and chemical tank
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	Thai Special Steel PCL. 
	Producing,
	Coordinated
	4,220,000,000
	16.24
	673,350,000
	673,350,000
	673,350,000

	

	distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	steel
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rayong Acetylene Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	115,000,000
	13.04
	15,000,000
	15,000,000
	15,000,000

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	acetylene gas
	
	
	
	
	
	

	United Grain Industry Co., Ltd.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	550,000,000
	7.46
	41,045,800
	99,269,800
	41,045,800

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	packing materials
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	and sack sales
	
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	787,619,800
	729,395,800

	Less Impairment losses
	
	
	
	
	(780,305,273)
	(722,081,273)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	    7,314,527
	   7,314,527

	Equity Securities (Listed companies)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Available-for-Sales Securities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	TPI Polene PCL.
	Manufacturing
	Coordinated
	5,075,000,000
	49.11 and
	8,597,697,989
	11,464,916,260
	11,454,335,524

	
	and distributing
	shareholder
	
	49.07
	
	
	

	
	cement
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	and LDPE
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bangkok Union Insurance PCL.
	Insurance
	Coordinated
	80,000,000
	0.50
	2,050,500
	1,400,000
	1,400,000

	
	business
	shareholder
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	



	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	11,466,316,260
	11,455,735,524

	Total Long-term Investments in Related Parties
	
	
	
	
	11,473,630,787
	11,463,050,051


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded loss on investments in seven and six subsidiaries, respectively exceeding the carrying amount by the equity method of Baht 4,172.92 million and Baht 5,235.83 million, respectively which is shown under non-current liabilities in the Company’s financial statements.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, loss exceeding carrying amount of investment in Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited of Baht 269.85 million is shown under other non-current liabilities.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:



Baht




Consolidated



Balance at
Addition/
Sales/
Balance at


December 31, 2003
Adjust
Deduction
December 31, 2004
	Cost/Revalued increment
	
	
	
	

	Land
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	17,320,671,491
	-
	-
	17,320,671,491

	Revalued increment
	  2,646,289,776
	

-

	

-

	  2,646,289,776

	
	19,966,961,267
	-
	-
	19,966,961,267




Baht




Consolidated



Balance at
Addition/
Sales/
Balance at


December 31, 2003
Adjust
Deduction
December 31, 2004

	Land improvements
	130,396,266
	-
	-
	130,396,266

	Buildings
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	17,994,689,501
	76,520,987
	-
	18,071,210,488

	Revalued increment
	  4,547,421,215
	

-

	

-

	  4,547,421,215

	
	22,542,110,716
	76,520,987
	-
	22,618,631,703

	Building improvements
	104,700,413
	-
	-
	104,700,413

	Pipes
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	324,040,868
	-
	-
	324,040,868

	Revalued increment
	      97,007,700
	

-

	

-

	      97,007,700

	
	421,048,568
	-
	-
	421,048,568

	Machinery and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	62,719,589,784
	219,876,026
	-
	62,939,465,810

	Revalued increment
	 29,167,154,144
	

-

	

-

	 29,167,154,144

	
	91,886,743,928
	219,876,026
	-
	92,106,619,954

	Factory equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	1,527,230,414
	51,775,374
	(1,982,674)
	1,577,023,114

	Revalued increment
	        96,092,866
	

-

	

-

	        96,092,866

	
	1,623,323,280
	51,775,374
	(1,982,674)
	1,673,115,980

	Office furniture and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	509,584,091
	35,828,781
	(5,071,278)
	540,341,594

	Revalued increment
	         1,746,932
	

-

	

-

	         1,746,932

	
	   511,331,023
	35,828,781
	(5,071,278)
	   542,088,526

	Vehicles
	850,287,615
	4,080,810
	-
	854,368,425

	Oil vessels
	119,457,300
	-
	-
	119,457,300

	Machinery and equipment in transit
	2,377,062
	114,506,922
	(88,016,246)
	28,867,738

	Property under construction
	        93,244,730
	   315,252,386
	  (158,942,908)
	       249,554,208

	Total
	138,251,982,168
	   817,841,286
	  (254,013,106)
	138,815,810,348

	Accumulated depreciation and amortization
	
	
	
	

	Land improvements
	2,404,355
	106,939
	            63,342
	2,574,636

	Buildings
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	3,661,303,667
	564,360,531
	-
	4,225,664,198

	Revalued increment
	1,151,004,602
	    148,839,123
	

    (24,633)
	1,299,819,092

	
	4,812,308,269
	713,199,654
	

    (24,633)
	5,525,483,290

	Building improvements
	65,838,928
	10,271,764
	-
	76,110,692

	Pipes
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	46,194,695
	8,063,759
	-
	54,258,454

	Revalued increment
	         7,919,960
	       2,639,987
	

-

	         10,559,947

	
	54,114,655
	10,703,746
	-
	64,818,401

	Machinery and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	15,955,398,845
	2,215,067,864
	-
	18,170,466,709

	Revalued increment
	  8,733,190,806
	   978,914,040
	

-

	  9,712,104,846

	
	24,688,589,651
	3,193,981,904
	-
	27,882,571,555

	Factory equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	1,120,839,492
	112,418,480
	(1,064,225)
	1,232,193,747

	Revalued increment
	       46,929,652
	    15,587,789
	

-

	       62,517,441

	
	1,167,769,144
	128,006,269
	(1,064,225)
	1,294,711,188

	Office furniture and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	346,022,279
	41,429,248
	(4,269,323)
	383,182,204

	Revalued increment
	            876,543
	          288,020
	

-

	           1,164,563

	
	346,898,822
	41,717,268
	(4,269,323)
	384,346,767




Baht




Consolidated



Balance at
Addition/
Sales/
Balance at


December 31, 2003
Adjust
Deduction
December 31, 2004

	Vehicles
	624,750,216
	82,692,720
	-
	707,442,936

	Oil vessels
	       41,881,474
	      5,972,852
	

-

	       47,854,326

	Total
	31,804,555,514
	4,186,653,116
	(5,294,839)
	35,985,913,791

	Accumulated impairment losses
	
	
	
	

	Land
	10,682,900,515
	-
	-
	10,682,900,515

	Buildings
	491,032,199
	-
	-
	491,032,199

	Building improvements
	299,316
	-
	-
	299,316

	Pipes
	1,174,300
	-
	-
	1,174,300

	Factory equipment
	8,078,295
	-
	-
	8,078,295

	Office furniture and equipment
	             17,203
	

-

	

-

	             17,203

	Total
	11,183,501,828
	

-

	

-

	11,183,501,828

	
	
	
	
	

	Book value
	
	
	
	

	Land
	9,284,060,752
	
	
	9,284,060,752

	Land improvements
	127,991,911
	
	
	127,821,630

	Buildings
	17,238,770,248
	
	
	16,602,116,214

	Building improvements
	38,562,169
	
	
	28,290,405

	Pipes
	365,759,613
	
	
	355,055,867

	Machinery and equipment
	67,198,154,277
	
	
	64,224,048,399

	Factory equipment
	447,475,841
	
	
	370,326,497

	Office furniture and equipment
	164,414,998
	
	
	157,724,556

	Vehicles
	225,537,399
	
	
	146,925,489

	Oil vessels
	77,575,826
	
	
	71,602,974

	Machinery and equipment in transit
	2,377,062
	
	
	28,867,738

	Property under construction
	      93,244,730
	
	
	      249,554,208

	Total 
	95,263,924,826
	
	
	91,646,394,729

	
	
	
	
	




Baht




The Company Only



Balance at
Addition/
Sales/
Balance at


December 31, 2003
Adjust
Deduction
December 31, 2004

	Cost/Revalued increment
	
	
	
	

	Land
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	4,238,914,589
	-
	-
	4,238,914,589

	Revalued increment
	2,646,289,776
	

-

	

-

	2,646,289,776

	
	6,885,204,365
	-
	-
	6,885,204,365

	Land improvements
	114,019,549
	-
	-
	114,019,549

	Buildings
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	15,499,621,314
	70,825,020
	-
	15,570,446,334

	Revalued increment
	  4,201,794,040
	

-

	

-

	  4,201,794,040

	
	19,701,415,354
	70,825,020
	-
	19,772,240,374

	Building improvements
	100,325,788
	-
	-
	100,325,788

	Machinery and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	56,774,907,622
	219,113,365
	-
	56,994,020,987

	Revalued increment
	27,557,551,065
	

-

	

-

	27,557,551,065

	
	84,332,458,687
	219,113,365
	-
	84,551,572,052

	Factory equipment
	900,472,921
	46,213,100
	-
	946,686,021

	Office furniture and equipment
	424,641,873
	28,370,740
	(5,005,856)
	448,006,757




Baht




The Company Only



Balance at
Addition/
Sales/
Balance at


December 31, 2003
Adjust
Deduction
December 31, 2004

	Vehicles
	329,911,296
	466,340
	-
	330,377,636

	Machinery and equipment in transit
	2,247,701
	91,044,620
	(84,386,910)
	8,905,411

	Property under construction
	        53,899,621
	   257,466,355
	    (154,493,735)
	      156,872,241

	Total
	112,844,597,155
	   713,499,540
	   (243,886,501)
	113,314,210,194

	Accumulated depreciation and amortization
	
	
	
	

	Buildings
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	3,251,684,599
	511,035,359
	-
	3,762,719,958

	Revalued increment
	1,099,731,705
	    139,569,416
	

-

	1,239,301,121

	
	4,351,416,304
	650,604,775
	-
	5,002,021,079

	Building improvements
	64,068,496
	10,032,343
	-
	74,100,839

	Machinery and equipment
	
	
	
	

	Cost
	14,033,398,560
	1,953,412,123
	-
	15,986,810,683

	Revalued increment
	  8,296,852,438
	   919,012,309
	

-

	  9,215,864,747

	
	22,330,250,998
	2,872,424,432
	-
	25,202,675,430

	Factory equipment
	674,209,247
	50,962,616
	-
	725,171,863

	Office furniture and equipment
	289,544,974
	33,173,663
	(4,221,538)
	318,497,099

	Vehicles
	     246,108,821
	    28,468,667
	____-_____
	     274,577,488

	Total
	27,955,598,840
	3,645,666,496
	  (4,221,538)
	31,597,043,798

	Book value
	
	
	
	

	Land
	6,885,204,365
	
	
	6,885,204,365

	Land improvements
	114,019,549
	
	
	114,019,549

	Buildings
	15,349,999,050
	
	
	14,770,219,295

	Building improvements
	36,257,292
	
	
	26,224,949

	Machinery and equipment
	62,002,207,689
	
	
	59,348,896,622

	Factory equipment
	226,263,674
	
	
	221,514,158

	Office furniture and equipment
	135,096,899
	
	
	129,509,658

	Vehicles
	83,802,475
	
	
	55,800,148

	Machinery and equipment in transit
	2,247,701
	
	
	8,905,411

	Property under construction
	       53,899,621
	
	
	       156,872,241

	Total 
	84,888,998,315
	
	
	81,717,166,396


Depreciation and amortization are included in:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Cost of sales
	4,034,379,525
	
	4,046,218,407
	
	3,609,296,041
	
	3,638,321,877

	Selling and administrative
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	expenses
	    152,273,591
	
	   153,140,824
	
	     36,370,455
	
	     36,339,576

	Total 
	4,186,653,116
	
	4,199,359,231
	
	3,645,666,496
	
	3,674,661,453


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated buildings and equipment that are still in use is as follows:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Buildings and equipment
	818,686,997
	
	738,235,824
	
	785,118,511
	
	725,888,202


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, land of the Company and its subsidiaries including structures existing at present, and to be constructed in the future, are mortgaged as collateral for scheme debts pursuant to the former agreements and the rehabilitation plan as described in Note 30 to the financial statements. 

12. LEASEHOLD LAND

Leasehold land as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated and the Company Only

	
	Balance at
	
	
	Balance at

	
	December 31, 2003
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2004

	Leasehold land
	55,176,970
	-
	-
	55,176,970

	Less Accumulated amortization
	12,463,719
	955,899
	-
	13,419,618

	
Impairment losses
	20,647,916
	

-

	

-

	20,647,916

	Leasehold land – net
	22,065,335
	955,899
	

-

	21,109,436


Leasehold land is amortized as expenses for 2004 and 2003 of Baht 955,899 in the consolidated statements of income and the Company’s statements of income.
13. DREDGING EXPENSES

Dredging expenses as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated and the Company Only

	
	Balance at
	
	
	Balance at

	
	December 31, 2003
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2004

	Dredging expenses
	2,511,995,271
	-
	-
	2,511,995,271

	Less Accumulated amortization
	   590,119,091
	125,599,763
	

-

	   715,718,854

	Total 
	1,921,876,180
	125,599,763
	

-

	1,796,276,417


Amortization of dredging expenses charged as an expense for 2004 and 2003 amounted to Baht 125,599,763 for each year in the consolidated statements of income and the Company’s statements of income.
14. DEPOSIT FOR LAND

Deposit for land as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Deposit for land located 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   at Rayong Province
	97,430,575
	
	97,430,575
	
	97,430,575
	
	97,430,575

	Deposit for land located 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	   at Songkhla Province
	205,828,177
	
	205,828,177
	
	205,828,177
	
	205,828,177

	Advance payment for land
	25,790,633
	
	25,790,633
	
	25,790,633
	
	25,790,633

	Deposit for land
	        300,000
	
	        300,000
	
	        300,000
	
	        300,000

	
	329,349,385
	
	329,349,385
	
	329,349,385
	
	329,349,385

	Less Impairment losses
	(329,349,385)
	
	(231,618,810)
	
	(329,349,385)
	
	(231,618,810)

	Total 
	

-

	
	   97,730,575
	
	

-

	
	   97,730,575


Deposit for land located at Rayong Province of Baht 97.43 million represents a purchase of 70 title deeds for area of 359 rai 2 ngan 26.90 square wah in respect of which the transfer of ownership has not yet been registered. As at December 31, 2004, the current Plan Administrator had provided a provision for impairment of Baht 97.43 million.
Advance payment for land located at Rayong and Sonkhla Provinces of Baht 25.79 million has been long outstanding and an allowance for impairment loss has been made by the Plan Administrator of Baht 25.79 million.

Deposit for land located at Songkhla Province of Baht 205.83 million consisted of:-

	Type of agreement/ Date
	Purchase objective
	Location of land to be purchased
	Average price 

Baht per rai
	Advance payment

Baht
	Collateral

	Purchase/

18/1/1994
	1,000 rai
	Tumbol Natab, Amphur Jana, Songkhla Province
	300,000
	25,000,000
	3 certificates of Nor. Sor. 3 Kor

	Willingness to sell and purchase/2/3/1994,
Amendment/ 2/3/1994/

14/7/1994
	1,100 rai
	Moo 1, 2 and 10, Tumbol Natab, Amphur Jana, Songkhla Province 
	300,000
	
	


The Company entered into 3 purchase agreements with a third parties to purchase the acquired land of approximately 2,100 rai with average price of approximately Baht 300,000 per rai under the attached agreement with 61 utilization certificates (Nor. Sor. 3 Kor.) of 48 persons for area of 1,155 rai 1 ngan 10 square wah.

The term of payment for land depended upon the actual land procured.  The Company would pay half of the price of the aforementioned land and the rest would be paid within 15 days after the process of land title issuance.

Under the 3 agreements, the Company paid and recorded the transaction as follows:

	
	Baht

	Deposit for half of land price to be gathered for 1,372 rai 3 ngan 47 square wah
	205,930,125

	13 times advance payment to third parties
	179,000,000

	Total
	384,930,125

	Less Part of land transferred right of land of 52 certificates for area 
	

	
of 852 rai 3 ngan 78 square wah
	(179,101,948)

	Outstanding deposit for land
	205,828,177

	The Company recorded allowance for impairment loss.
	205,828,177


15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current assets as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Water mains - net 
	12,298,500
	
	28,098,135
	
	12,298,500
	
	28,098,135

	Computer development expenses-net
	2,515,711
	
	3,357,794
	
	2,515,711
	
	3,357,794

	Others 
	  3,464,635
	
	  5,011,802
	
	     104,000
	
	     104,000

	
Total
	18,278,846
	
	36,467,731
	
	14,918,211
	
	31,559,929


Water mains and computer development expenses as at December 31, 2004 consisted of:- 

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated and The Company Only

	
	Balance at
	Addition/
	Sales/
	Balance at

	
	December 31, 2003
	Adjust
	Deduction
	December 31, 2004

	Cost:-
	201,701,284
	-
	-
	201,701,284

	Water mains
	    7,719,083
	    558,650
	

-

	    8,277,733

	Computer development expenses
	209,420,367
	558,650
	-
	209,979,017

	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated amortization
	
	
	
	

	Water mains
	173,603,150
	15,799,634
	-
	189,402,784

	Computer development expenses
	    4,361,288
	  1,400,734
	

-

	    5,762,022

	
	177,964,438
	17,200,368
	

-

	195,164,806

	Net book value
	  31,455,929
	
	
	  14,814,211


Amortization of water mains and computer development expenses charged as an expense for 2004 and 2003 amounted to Baht 17,200,368 and Baht 17,264,459, respectively in the consolidated statements of income and the Company’s statements of income.

16. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Bank overdrafts
	198,085,537
	
	238,640,604
	
	151,310,314
	
	155,006,469

	Short- term loans
	95,789,079
	
	3,264,098,398
	
	  90,354,672
	
	3,219,200,741

	Total
	293,874,616
	
	3,502,739,002
	
	241,664,986
	
	3,374,207,210


As at December 31, 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries have credit facility from three domestic commercial banks of up to USD 120 million as working capital to purchase raw material.  Interest is charged at LIBOR plus 1% per annum, 6 months LIBOR plus 2% per annum and LIBOR plus 2.5% per annum.  Ownership rights over seven bank deposit accounts and twelve trade accounts receivable were transferred to the banks as collateral for the credit facility. Later in September 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries were approved to extend the credit facility from the three banks which two commercial banks had extended the credit facility of USD 40 million being total credit facility of USD 160 million.
17. CREDITORS UNDER THE REHABILITATION PLAN

Creditors under the rehabilitation plan as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Creditors under the rehabilitation plan
	104,859,320,190
	
	105,475,651,730
	
	92,735,264,291
	
	93,303,946,434

	Less
Current portion of creditors 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	under the rehabilitation plan 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	due within one year shown
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	under current liabilities
	(36,398,257,442)
	
	        (85,335,986)
	
	(32,715,207,703)
	
	      (85,335,986)

	
	68,461,062,748
	
	105,390,315,744
	
	60,020,056,588
	
	93,218,610,448


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the terms of payment, related collaterals, significant conditions to be performed, interest rate charged and details of the rehabilitation plan of the Company and its six subsidiaries on creditors under the rehabilitation plan are mentioned in Note 3 to the financial statements.
As at December 31, 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries have delayed the payment of interest (Tier 1) under the rehabilitation plan dated September 25, 2000 and November 1, 2000 incurred from April 2003 to December 2003 of Baht 992.68 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 856.19 million in the Company’s financial statements. The delayed interest payments may cause an event of default as specified in the plan. However, the current Plan Administrator has submitted the amended rehabilitation plan and the plan has been approved by the Central Bankruptcy Court.  Please see Note 3 to the financial statements.

18. SHARE CAPITAL

On March 2, 2001, the Plan Administrator registered to reduce share capital from Baht 21,700,000,000 to Baht 19,500,000,000 and increased share capital from Baht 19,500,000,000 to Baht 81,000,000,000 divided into 8,100,000,000 shares of Baht 10 par value with the Ministry of Commerce.

On May 3, 2001, the Plan Administrator distributed the newly issued shares from increase of share capital of Baht 58,989,112,110 divided into 5,898,911,211 shares of Baht 10 par value by converting unpaid accrued interest and guarantee fees from 1998 to 2000 of USD 751.64 million being equivalent Baht 32,558.44 million into share capital of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited resulting in Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited having authorized share capital of Baht 81,000,000,000 and fully paid share capital of Baht 78,489,112,110 which were registered with the Ministry of Commerce.

234,785,052 authorized shares (251,088,789 shares netted against 16,303,737 shares being allotted to the non-scheme creditors), which have remained after allotting increased share capital in pursuance of the rehabilitation plan by the proportion of each creditor, are reserved for the adjustment of debt by the Official Receiver.

Later on December 27, 2004, the Company submitted the petition to decrease and increase share capital and amend the memorandum of association.  The Central Bankruptcy Court had considered that the change in the memorandum of association was in compliance with the proposal of the plan amendment; therefore, the Court permitted the Company to take the aforementioned action on December 28, 2004.
Therefore, as at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s authorized share capital amounts to Baht 81,000,000,000 divided into 8,100,000,000 shares of Baht 10 par value and fully paid share capital amounts to Baht 78,489,112,110 divided into 7,848,911,211 shares of Baht 10 par value.

19. SURPLUS ON CHANGE IN PERCENTAGE OF HOLDING IN RELATED PARTIES

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the surplus on change in percentage of holding in related parties of Baht 26 million in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements is in respect of Thai Nitrate Company Limited.  The surplus is shown under shareholders’ equity.

20. WITHHOLDING TAX AND ADJUSTMENT

In June 2003 and September 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries, through the current Plan Administrator, adjusted withholding tax arising on the conversion of unpaid accrued interest and guarantee fees into common shares of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited on May 3, 2001.  This adjustment was made following advice from the Revenue Department, in the letter dated July 24, 2003, that withholding tax shall be deducted and remitted to the Revenue Department within 7 days from May 3, 2001.  The adjustment comprises accrued withholding tax of Baht 669.66 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 621.91 million in the Company’s financial statements.

Therefore, the Company and its subsidiaries made retrospective adjustments in the prior year financial statements for the above matters.

The cumulative effect of the adjustment on the deficit carried forward for 2003 is as follows:
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated and the Company Only

	Increase in brought forward deficit
	669,655,367


On August 6, 2004, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company paid the withholding tax under Section 70 of Revenue Code which was incurred from the conversion of accrued interest and guarantee fees into common shares of the Company of Baht 770,125,578.26 (the tax payment of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited of Baht 621,906,064.17 and the tax payment on behalf of Thai ABS Company Limited of Baht 46,778,165.33, on behalf of TPI Oil Company Limited of Baht 971,137.18, on behalf of Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited of Baht 100,055,279.53 and on behalf of Thai Petrochemical Industry (Cayman Island) Company Limited of Baht 414,932.05).  The surcharge (being 1.5% per month from the date that the withholding tax was payable, May 3, 2001, to the date of payment, August 6, 2004) of Baht 438,971,579.59 was to be settled by refund from the Revenue Department of value added tax until the surcharge was fully paid (the aforementioned surcharge was the surcharge of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited of Baht 354,486,456.48 and Thai ABS Company Limited of Baht 26,663,554.23, TPI Oil Company Limited of Baht 553,548.28, Rayong Tank Terminal Company Limited of Baht 57,031,509.33 and Thai Petrochemical Industry (Cayman Island) Company Limited of Baht 236,511.24). The Company settled the final balance of outstanding surcharge with value added tax refunded from the Revenue Department on November 17, 2004.
21. REVALUATION SURPLUS

The Company and its subsidiaries have recorded and recognized revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 as follows:-



Baht




Consolidated and the Company Only


	2004
	Land
	Buildings
	Machinery
	Others
	
Total

	Revaluation Surplus:-
	
	
	
	
	

	- The Company
	2,646,289,776
	2,962,492,918
	18,341,686,318
	-
	23,950,469,012

	- The subsidiaries
	-
	370,619,863
	1,113,362,982
	34,157,794
	1,518,140,639

	- The related or associated
	
	
	
	
	

	companies
	

-

	3,407,770,402
	  9,666,174,952
	

-

	13,073,945,354

	
Total
	2,646,289,776
	6,740,883,183
	29,121,224,252
	34,157,794
	38,542,555,005




Baht




Consolidated and the Company Only


	2003
	Land
	Buildings
	Machinery
	Others
	
Total

	Revaluation Surplus:-
	
	
	
	
	

	- The Company
	2,646,289,776
	3,102,062,334
	19,260,698,626
	-
	25,009,050,736

	- The subsidiaries
	-
	382,504,924
	1,173,264,713
	50,033,603
	1,605,803,240

	- The related or associated
	
	
	
	
	

	companies
	

-

	3,407,770,402
	  9,666,174,952
	

-

	13,073,945,354

	
Total
	2,646,289,776
	6,892,337,660
	30,100,138,291
	50,033,603
	39,688,799,330


The changes of revaluation surplus for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Beginning balance
	Additional
	Decrease
	Ending balance

	2004
	
	
	
	

	Revaluation Surplus:-
	
	
	
	

	Land
	2,646,289,776
	
-
	-
	2,646,289,776

	Buildings
	6,892,337,660
	
-
	151,454,477
	6,740,883,183

	Machinery
	30,100,138,291
	
-
	978,914,039
	29,121,224,252

	Others
	       50,033,603
	

-

	     15,875,809
	       34,157,794

	Total
	39,688,799,330
	

-

	1,146,244,325
	38,542,555,005

	2003
	
	
	
	

	Revaluation Surplus:-
	
	
	
	

	Land
	2,646,289,776
	
-
	-
	2,646,289,776

	Buildings
	7,043,792,137
	
-
	151,454,477
	6,892,337,660

	Machinery
	31,079,052,330
	
-
	978,914,039
	30,100,138,291

	Others
	        65,969,001
	

-

	     15,935,398
	       50,033,603

	Total
	40,835,103,244
	

-

	1,146,303,914
	39,688,799,330


22. LEGAL RESERVE

Under the Public Companies Act, the Company is required to set aside as a legal reserve at least 5% of its net income after accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve is not less than 10% of authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution as dividends.
23. THE COMPANY’S SHARES HELD BY SUBSIDIARIES

2,063,600 shares and 12,828,400 shares of the Company are held by Thai ABS Company Limited and TPI Oil Company Limited, respectively.  These holdings have been treated in the balance sheets as a deduction before total shareholders’ equity. 

24. INCOME TAX

Income tax for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 of Baht 17,264,344 and Baht 765,585, respectively in the consolidated statements of income are calculated basing on net profit of subsidiaries which are summarized as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated

	
	2004
	
	2003

	TPI Polyol Company Limited
	16,531,502
	
	-

	TPI Oil (2001) Company Limited
	691,757
	
	728,033

	TPI Oil (1997) Company Limited
	22,575
	
	13,372

	TPI Tank Terminal Company Limited
	9,255
	
	12,090

	TPI Refinery (1997) Company Limited
	         9,255
	
	  12,090

	Total
	17,264,344
	
	765,585


25. LONG-TERM LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Company and certain subsidiaries (“Companies”) had long-term office building lease agreements with Pornchai Enterprises Co., Ltd.  The initial lease term for each lease was for 3 years with the condition that the lease can be renewed for an unspecified number of additional 3 year terms at the option of the lessee, up to 90 years.

In July 1999, the Companies entered into long-term office building lease agreements with a related company (a lessor).  These new agreements are for 90 years and have replaced certain previous 3 year term agreements which have expired.  The Companies and subsidiaries made a rental deposit payment of Baht 556.8 million for the new leases by offsetting against the previous rental deposits.  However, such lease agreements have not been registered with the Land Department.

The rental deposit payment and the remaining deposits as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:-



Baht




Consolidated


Monthly 
Rental Deposit
Remaining Deposits



Rental


Payment

2004
2003
	Long-term lease agreements for 3 years term
	475,228.89
	510,897,200
	460,607,016
	466,309,763

	Long-term lease agreements for 90 years term
	433,149.41
	   564,594,595
	437,955,635
	443,153,428

	

	
	
	898,562,651
	909,463,191

	Less Impairment losses
	
	
	(895,560,203)
	(905,513,206)

	
Total
	
	
	     3,002,448
	     3,949,985




Baht




The Company Only



Monthly 
Rental Deposit
Remaining Deposits



Rental


Payment

2004
2003
	
Long-term lease agreements for 3 years term
	465,645.55
	500,897,200
	451,739,100
	457,326,847

	
Long-term lease agreements for 90 years term
	348,524.71
	455,945,006
	352,707,008
	356,889,304

	

	
	
	804,446,108
	814,216,151

	Less Impairment losses
	
	
	(804,446,108)
	(814,216,151)

	
Total
	
	
	

-

	

-



Should either party terminate the lease agreement, the unused rental deposit is refundable to such party.  Both parties had agreed in principle to execute a second mortgage on the office building as collateral for the unused deposits.  However, it is not known whether the fair market value of the building, net of existing first mortgage, is in excess of the deposit.  Therefore, it is uncertain as to whether or not the Companies will be able to recover the deposit in full from the related party.  Later, the Plan Administrator (Effective Planners Ltd.) recorded an impairment loss in respect of the full amount.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, commitments under long-term lease agreements of a subsidiary are as follows:

	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Amount of rental payment

	Type
	Period
	2004
	
	2005

	Land
	August 1, 1996 - November 1, 2016
	62,300,000
	
	64,500,000

	Land
	January 1, 1997 - July 1, 2017
	70,778,226
	
	79,778,378

	Land
	March 1, 1998 - March 1, 2018
	7,900,000
	
	8,500,000

	Land
	January 1, 1999 - May 1, 2005
	100,000
	
	400,000

	Land
	January 1, 2000 - December 19, 2005
	-
	
	126,316

	Land
	August 1, 2002 - July 31, 2005
	2,560,263
	
	6,244,790

	Land
	February 1, 2003 - January 31, 2006
	6,475,263
	
	1,010,526


26. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company and its subsidiaries have been engaged in petrochemical and petroleum business and other business (other business is income from education, rental income, etc.).  All business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are classified by segments, based on revenues and net profit for each of the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 and assets employed as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 as follows:


(Amounts : Million Baht)

  Sales and other income

Net profit (loss)


Assets employed


2004
2003
2004
2003
2004
2003
	The Company:-
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Petrochemical product
	62,936
	43,467
	7,181
	1,589
	breakdown not available

	Petroleum product
	100,967
	53,327
	4,967
	881
	
”
	
”

	Other income
	    3,471
	    6,060
	     136
	     76
	

 ”

	

”


	
	167,374
	102,854
	12,284
	2,546
	142,947
	137,807

	Subsidiaries:-
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Petrochemical product
	14,715
	9,820
	736
	481
	11,407
	10,254

	Petroleum product
	12,332
	15,582
	(50)
	(57)
	4,701
	4,951

	Others
	       339
	       321
	  1,053
	  (334)
	  4,264
	  4,154

	
	  27,386
	  25,723
	  1,739
	     90
	20,372
	19,359

	Total
	194,760
	128,577
	14,023
	2,636
	163,319
	157,166

	Less Inter-segment
	
	
	
	
	
	

	transactions
	(38,613)
	(32,442)
	 (1,739)
	    (90)
	(16,596)
	(16,194)

	Total 
	156,147
	  96,135
	
	
	
	

	Net profit
	
	
	12,284
	2,546
	
	

	Total Assets
	
	
	
	
	146,723
	140,972


Products of the subsidiaries consist of petrochemical and petroleum.  Other income consists of service income such as from education, rental income, etc.  Inter-segment transactions consist mainly of sales from TPI Oil Company Limited and Thai ABS Company Limited to the parent at market price.

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Commitments and contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of:-

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only 

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Contingent liabilities in respect of:-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-
Bank guarantees issued on 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 
behalf of the companies
	429,272,710
	
	424,778,210
	
	426,382,910
	
	421,898,910

	-
Guarantees issued on behalf 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 
of related companies
	2,711,803,606
	
	2,745,675,155
	
	11,225,473,129
	
	11,308,528,763

	-
Other defendant in a litigation
	23,032,947
	
	27,651,588
	
	23,032,947
	
	27,651,588

	Commitments:-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-
Under unused letters of credit
	5,139,376,029
	
	1,085,612,026
	
	5,117,409,849
	
	1,067,220,328

	-
Under purchase agreements for
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
machinery purchases and construction 
	1,421,839,905
	
	1,329,806,001
	
	  1,401,846,630
	
	  1,309,539,723

	Total
	9,725,325,197
	
	5,613,522,980
	
	18,194,145,465
	
	14,134,839,312


(
On July 21, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a company as an independent accountant to control the financing and accounting management.  The service period is from the effective date of agreement until the agreement will be terminated.  The fee is determined based on actual operating hours at the rate of Baht 5,000 per person, with the total amount not exceeding Baht 2.30 million per month.

(
On August 21, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a consulting company to advise on the analysis of production system, marketing, accounting and financing for planning for a period of 2 months for a fee of USD 60,000 per month excluding value added tax, which the agreement was expired during the year 2004.
(
On August 31, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a company to advise in managing the operations and assets of the Company and report their work to the group of the Plan Administrator and others as per the Plan Administrator’s order.  The monthly fees are determined of Baht 20 million excluding value added tax.  The term of service will be immediately terminated when the Ministry of Finance is no longer the current Plan Administrator of the Company.

(
On September 18, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into agreements with two consulting companies to advise the current Plan Administrator regarding the finance of the Company and the affiliated companies under the rehabilitation plan including the review of financial information of the group of companies and the negotiations to amend the rehabilitation plan.  The hiring rate is determined into 2 parts which are as follows:

· Lump sum of hire amount; installment payment according to the progress of work totaling USD 5 million excluding value added tax;

· Monthly hire amount; monthly payment of USD 0.25 million excluding value added tax.  The term of work is 3 months from the effective date of agreements, which can be extended by 2 months.

Later on May 25, 2004 and September 7, 2004, the current Plan Administrator entered into an amended agreement No. 1 and 2 to extend the period of work to December 31, 2004. The conditions of the amended agreements are in compliance with the former agreement.

(
On September 18, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a consulting company for technical experts to examine the Company’s production techniques for a period of 3 months.  The fee is Baht 45 million excluding value added tax and other actual expenses being not over Baht 13 million.

(
On October 22, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a consulting company to advise on business management in relation to marketing for a lump sum fee of Baht 9.38 million which the completion of work was determined by progress of work.

(
On October 7, 2003, the current Plan Administrator on behalf of the Company entered into an agreement with a legal consulting company to advise on general consulting and litigation consulting to the Plan Administrator to implement the rehabilitation plan and to the legal consultant of the Company and its six subsidiaries.  The monthly fee is Baht 0.15 million excluding value added tax and other related working expenses.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities which are still in the process of examination and authorization by the Official Receiver and the Central Bankruptcy Court are as follows.  Please also see Note 3 to the financial statements.

	
	Million Baht

	
	Still in the process of examination

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited
	
	
	

	Over refundable import duty tax, penalty and tax debate
	
	
	

	
from machinery import and export production
	1,709.75
	
	1,709.75

	Defendant in a litigation with respect to a claim for
	
	
	

	
compensation on land dispute
	320.51
	
	320.51

	Trust receipts agreements and guarantee fee due
	
	
	

	
to be guaranteed by four domestic commercial banks
	-
	
	316.02

	Others
	   155.41
	
	   162.92

	Total
	2,185.67
	
	2,509.20


Two Subsidiaries (TPI Oil Company Limited and Thai ABS Company Limited)


	Over refundable import duty tax, penalty and tax debate
	
	
	

	from machinery import and export production
	64.64
	
	64.64

	Trust receipts agreements and guarantee fee due 
	
	
	

	to be guaranteed by domestic commercial banks
	11.04
	
	11.03

	Guarantee amounts provided by the former management
	76.90
	
	77.96

	Others
	  17.70
	
	  17.70

	Total
	170.28
	
	171.33


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company was contingently liable to companies which  were the creditors No. 193 and 364 in respect of respective claims as follows:

· The creditor No. 193 submitted respective claim of Baht 2,831.88 million which the Official Receiver ordered the amount of debts of Baht 389.38 million including interest at the rate MOR plus 2%.  On November 2, 2001, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered to dismiss the respective claims.  Later on December 24, 2001, the creditor appealed to the Supreme Court and on January 25, 2002, the Company filed the objection to the creditor’s appeal.  Up to December 31, 2003, the result had not been finalized.
Later on August 18, 2004, the Supreme Court instructed that the creditor would be repaid for the amount of debt arising from breaching purchase contract of Baht 389.38 million including interest MOR plus 2%.  The Company has repaid the creditor in compliance with the Court’s order amounts totaling Baht 529.03 million,  including interest.
· The creditor No. 364 submitted respective claim in respect of the compensation on olefins purchase agreement of Baht 4,461.26 million which the Official Receiver ordered the amount of debts of Baht 347.81 million including interest at MOR plus 2%.  The Company filed an objection to the Official Receiver’s order.
On December 27, 2004, the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered that the creditor No. 364 would be repaid Baht 259.82 million including interest at MOR plus 2% until the complete repayment date.  Later, the Company filed an appeal to the Supreme Court.  Up to December 31, 2004, the result has not been finalized
As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company was contingently liable for compensation due to termination without advance notice for 4 former members of management for which the litigation claim amounted to Baht 451.46 million at the date of litigation. The Central Labour Court sentenced one of the cases which the Company had to pay the compensation, wage including interest and other expenses of Baht 4.85 million.  Later, the Company appealed to the Supreme Court.  Up to the present, the case is in the process of consideration, the result of which has not been finalized.  

As at December 31, 2004, the Company was contingently liable for claims from 3 former members of management with respect to default hire agreements according to the labor law, for which the litigation claim amounted to Baht 267.34 million at the date of litigation.  Up to December 31, 2004, according to the lawyer’s opinion of the external lawyer, the Company may compensate for such loss approximately Baht 41.58 million.  However, the Company is in the process of preparing to appeal to the Supreme Court.  Up to the present, the result has not been finalized.
The meeting of the current Plan Administrator held on June 1, 2004 reported problems in relation to the Town & Country Planning of Rayong Province in the area where the Company’s tank farm and the tank construction are located.  The Subcommittee of the Department of Public Works and Town & Country Planning dismissed the Company’s petition in respect of the modification of the Town & Country Planning of Rayong Province in the area of the Company’s tank farm from yellow (less crowded community zone) to purple (industrial zone) and the modification of not allowing 2 roads to pass through this zone.  This may affect the Company: if it has to comply with the Town & Country Planning Notice, the Company will have to demolish its oil tanks and will be unable to run refinery machinery, seriously affecting its operations.  In addition, the Meeting reported on the application for approval from the Department of Energy Business for use of 18 oil tanks.  The Company has to modify the tanks before requesting permission. The expenses of modification amount to approximately Baht 26.90 million.
As at December 31, 2003, the Company entered into forward exchange contracts with domestic commercial banks of which outstanding amounts are as follows:-

	Amounts
	Exchange rates
	Due dates

	USD 10,936,499.53
	39.590-40.265
	January 5, 2004-March 9, 2004

	Euro 443,475.25
	48.395-49.410
	January 15, 2004-February 23, 2004

	AUD 154,788
	28.86-29.35
	January 5, 2004-January 8, 2004

	Yen 13,285,000
	0.365
	January 13, 2004


The status of claims and legal proceedings

As at December 31, 2004, the legal department of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited confirmed the status of claims and legal proceedings of the Company as per a letter dated February 10, 2004 summarized as follows:-

	Case No./ Date 
	Court
	Plaintiff / Creditors
	Defendant / Debtors
	Details of cases

	Black Case No.

3568/2545
	Rayong Provincial Court
	Rayong Province Attorney General 
	Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited by Effective Planners Co., Ltd. as the Plan Administrator by Mr. Peter James Gothard as the authorized director 
	Charged with jointly erecting a pier encroaching on Thai waters and its beach differently than authorized by the Harbour Department that plaintiff submitted the petition to dismiss at the present.

	Motion Filed 

of the Official Receiver to proceed under  the Bankruptcy Act Section 90/39 in the Black Case No. For 2/2543,

Red Case No. For 8/2543
	Office of Business Reorganization, Execution

Department  
	Effective Planners Co., Ltd. as the Plan Administrator
	TPI Holdings 

Co., Ltd., Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd. and TPI EOEG Co., Ltd., Which are companies in the TPI Group
	Demand for payment of principal plus interest under a promissory note and accrued interest.  This case arose from a loan between subsidiary of TPI and Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited had an agreement with the company notified for payment that the claim for payment can only be made if the guarantee which the executive of each company notified to pay or other security given by subsidiaries in the TPI group or of the executive of the company notified to pay being collateral given to a third part was released. 

	1726/2547, 1727/2547, 1728/2547
	South Bangkok Civil Court
	Leopairatana Enterprise Co., Ltd., Mr. Prachai Leopairatana, TPI Holding Co., Ltd.
	TPI Aromatics PCL., Ministry of Finance, Minister of Ministry of Finance, and 5 of Group of the Plan Administrator
	Demand for payment of stock certificate borrowing fee of shares of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited, which TPI Aromatics Public Company Limited used as collateral for liabilities with a domestic commercial bank, including accrued value added tax and interest incurred from July 1, 2003 to January 31, 2004 and from February 1, 2004 to the expiration of stock certificate borrowing agreement and return of the shares to the plaintiff.


	Case No./ Date 
	Court
	Plaintiff / Creditors
	Defendant / Debtors
	Details of cases

	Red Case No. For.

8/2543,    466/2543, 534/2543, 533/2543, 465/2543, 500/2543, 515/2543
	The Central Bankruptcy Court
	Bangkok Bank No. 1 and others in total of 5 persons
	Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited, TPI Oil Co., Ltd., TPI Polyol Co., Ltd., TPI Energy Co., Ltd., Thai ABS Co., Ltd., TPI Aromatics Public Company Limited and Thai Polyurethane Industry Co., Ltd.
	November 10, 2004, the Central Bankruptcy Court approved the amended rehabilitation plan except the change of the management and the written-off of the guarantee.

The management of the debtor appealed to the Court which the Court accepted the appeal.  Later on December 27, 2004, the Plan Administrator filed the objection to the Central Bankruptcy Court.

The result of the appeal is in the process of consideration which has not been finalized.

	Red Case No. For. 8/2543 Part 27
	The Central Bankruptcy Court
	Bangkok Bank No. 1 and others in total of 5 persons
	Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited
	The management of TPI Polene Public Company Limited submitted the petition dated December 15, 2004 to the Central Bankruptcy Court to appeal the Court’s order that the person appointed by TPI Polene Public Company Limited has the right to purchase TPI Polene’s shares before other investors.

The Central Bankruptcy Court commenced hearing on January 26, 2005.

	Red Case No. For. 8/2543 Part 28
	The Central Bankruptcy Court
	Bangkok Bank No. 1 and others in total of 5 persons
	Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited
	Mr. Prachai Leopairattana as the management of the debtor submitted the petition dated December 14, 2004 to the Central Bankruptcy Court appealing the Court’s order that the management of the debtor has right to purchase the increased shares of TPI or to find a juristic person to purchase both new equity and existing equity before other strategic investors and creditors.

The Central Bankruptcy Court commenced hearing on January 26, 2005.


28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The information about the financial instrument is as follows:-
· Accounting policy


Details of significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

· Credit risk


Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Company and subsidiaries to incur financial losses.


The Company and its subsidiaries have the credit risk management policy to obtain collateral from the customers before commencing trade.  The collateral may include the Bank Guarantee avaled by the banks, post dated cheque, bill of exchange, cash guarantee, or the personal guarantee by a creditworthy person.


In the case of recognized financial assets; the carrying amount of the assets recorded in the balance sheet, net of allowance for doubtful debts, represents the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ maximum exposure to credit risk.

· Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk is the risk arising from changes of market interest rates. Please see Notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements for details of financial instruments subject to interest rate risk. 

· Currency Risk


The Company uses derivative financial statements to hedge its exposure foreign exchange rate risk by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts.

· Fair value of financial instruments

The following methods and assumptions are used by the Company and subsidiaries in estimating market value or fair value of financial instruments as disclosed herein:


Cash and cash equivalents, current investments, trade accounts receivable, and other receivables; the carrying values approximate their fair value.


Investment in equity securities represents trading securities, available-for-sale securities and general securities; the carrying values approximate fair value.


Short-term loans to related parties and receivables under the rehabilitation plan – related parties; the carrying values approximate fair value.


Notes receivable for land without interest; the fair value is equal to the book value.


Rental deposits; the fair value is estimated at the amount appraised by independent appraisal and netted against rental.


Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions, trade accounts payable, other payable and accrued expense; the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.


Creditors under rehabilitation plan; the carrying values approximate fair value.


Short-term loans from related parties and Creditors under the rehabilitation plan – related parties; the carrying values approximate fair value.


Off-balance sheet transactions; the fair values are based on the termination of the agreements.

29. PROMOTIONAL PRIVILEGES

Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited

During 1989, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited obtained further promotional certificates, receiving promotion privileges for four new products, including exemption from customs duty and business tax on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax for a period of five to six years on revenues derived from these new products.  During 1995, the Company obtained additional promotional privileges for the first product, exemption from company income tax from a period of 6 years to 8 years on respective revenues derived from the product.

During 1991, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited was granted promotional privileges certificates for an industrial estate project, expansion of capacity of a promoted product, and for two new products, including exemption from customs duty and business tax on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax at the rate of 50% reduction of normal rate of company income tax for a period of five years, eight years and seven years, respectively on respective revenues derived from the industrial estate project, expansion of capacity and the new product.  During 1995, the Company obtained additional promotional privileges for the new product, exemption from company income tax from a period of seven years to eight years on respective revenues derived from the new product.  During 2003, the Company obtained additional promotion privileges for new products of utility business and infrastructure service for power plant.

During 1992, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited was granted promotional certificates, for expansion of capacity of a promoted product including a 50% reduction of the normal rate of customs duty on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment and during 1995, the Company obtained further promotional certificates, receiving promotion privileges for promoted products, including exemption from customs duty and business tax on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax for a period of eight years on revenues derived from these new products.  Thereafter, the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of 5 years.  During 2003, the Company obtained promotional privileges for expansion of import tax reduction of raw material and spare parts which were imported to produce for export for a period of 2 years from June 10, 2003 to June 9, 2005.
During 1993, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited was granted promotional privileges for a warehousing and power plant project, including exemption from customs duty for machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax for a period of eight years on respective revenues.  Thereafter, the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of five years.
During 1995, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited was granted promotional privileges for expansion of capacity of promoted product, and for three new products, including exemption from customs duty on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax for a period of eight years on respective revenues derived from the expansion of capacity and for each new product.  Thereafter, the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of 5 years.  During 2003, the Company obtained additional promotion privileges for import tax reduction of raw material and spare parts which were imported to produce for export for a period of 2 years from August 29, 2003 to August 28, 2005.
During 2002, Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited was granted promotional privileges for manufacture of Acetylene Black, Category 6.2 in the business of other chemical, including exemption from customs duty on machinery and equipment which is approved by the Board of Investment, and exemption from company income tax for a period of eight years on respective revenues.  Thereafter, the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of 5 years. During 2004, the Company obtained promotional privileges for expansion of import tax reduction of machinery and equipment to August 30, 2005.
Thai ABS Company Limited
During 1991, Thai ABS Company Limited was granted promotion privileges for a product and the expanded production capacity of this product, transferred from the parent company, including exemption from customs duty and business tax on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment and exemption from company income tax until September 5, 1995 and for a period of 3 years, respectively, on respective revenues.  In 1995, the Company obtained additional promotion privileges for the above product, being exemption from company income tax from September 5, 1995 until September 4, 1998, and for the expanded production capacity of the product, the exemption from company income tax is extended from a period of 3 years to 8 years.  Thereafter the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of 5 years.

During 1995, Thai ABS Company Limited was granted promotional privileges for the expanded production capacity, for a new product, and received promotion privileges for a product, transferred from the parent company, including exemption from customs duty on machinery and equipment which are approved by the Board of Investment and exemption from company income tax for a period of 8 years on respective revenues derived from expanded production capacity and the new product.  For transferred product from the parent company exemption from company income tax is obtained up to June 30, 2000.  During 2003, the Company obtained additional promotion privileges for import tax exemption for raw material and other necessary supplies which were imported to produce for export for a period of two years from January 21, 2003 to January 20, 2005 and expanded the import of machinery to be February 28, 2004. On March 8, 2004, the Company obtained additional promotional privileges for import tax reduction of machinery and equipment to February 28, 2005. And obtained additional promotion privileges for import tax reduction of raw material and other necessary supplies which were imported to produce for export for a period of 2 years from July 27, 2004 to July 26, 2006.
During 1996, Thai ABS Company Limited was granted promotion privileges for the expanded production capacity of promoted product, and for new product, including exemption from customs duty on machinery which are approved by the Board of Investment and exemption from company income tax for a period of 8 years on respective revenues.  Thereafter the Company will get a 50% reduction of the normal rate of company income tax for a period of 5 years and exemption from customs duty on raw material for a period of 7 years. On June 24, 2004, the Company obtained additional promotional privileges for import tax reduction of raw material and other necessary supplies which were imported to produce for export for a period of 2 years from June 28, 2004 to June 27, 2006.
Shareholders of the Company are also exempted from tax on dividends received during the period in which the Company is granted exemption from company income tax.

The Company thus has to comply with certain conditions contained in the promotional certificates.

Domestic and export sales information in the Company’s statements of income, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 is classified into the promoted business and the non-promoted business as follows:



Baht


Promoted
Non-Promoted




Business
Business
Total
	2004
	
	
	

	
Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited
	
	
	

	
Revenue
-
Export sales
	5,850,172,760
	44,490,750,544
	50,340,923,304

	

- Domestic sales 
	20,952,579,791
	  92,609,734,419
	113,562,314,210

	
	26,802,752,551
	137,100,484,963
	163,903,237,514

	
	
	
	

	
Thai ABS Company Limited
	
	
	

	
Revenue
-
Domestic sales
	7,841,941,450
	5,698,685,973
	13,540,627,423

	
	
	
	




Baht


Promoted
Non-Promoted




Business
Business
Total
	2003
	
	
	

	
Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited
	
	
	

	
Revenue
-
Export sales
	21,430,420,975
	5,862,739,037
	27,293,160,012

	

- Domestic sales 
	63,220,550,628
	  6,280,946,060
	69,501,496,688

	
	84,650,971,603
	12,143,685,097
	96,794,656,700

	
	
	
	

	
Thai ABS Company Limited
	
	
	

	
Revenue
-
Domestic sales
	6,533,030,353
	2,237,301,495
	8,770,331,848


The promoted revenue as described above included revenue of all projects which received the promotional certificates regardless of the privileges of income tax.

30. PLEDGED ASSETS

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s deposits at banks (included fixed deposit) of Baht 47.08 million and Baht 24.95 million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 46.84 million and Baht 24.97 million in the separate financial statements, respectively, are used as collateral for bank overdrafts.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, land of the Company and its subsidiaries including structures existing at present, and to be constructed in the future are mortgaged as collateral for debts under the former loan agreements in the amount of Baht 4,774.50  million and Baht 586.21 million in the consolidated and separate financial statements, respectively and further for scheme debts pursuant to the business reorganization plan dated September 25, 2000 and November 1, 2000 with the creditors totalling Baht 61,004.16 million in the consolidated and separate financial statements as follows:-
The carrying value of land which is mortgaged as collateral as at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

	
	Million Baht 

	
	Debts pursuant to
	
	Debts pursuant to the

	
	the former agreements
	
	business reorganization plan

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
Land (in the consolidated 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
financial statements)
	9,889.26
	
	9,889.26
	
	3,246.87
	
	3,246.87

	
Land (in the separate 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
financial statements)
	24.44
	
	24.44
	
	3,225.62
	
	3,225.62


As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, 622 items of machinery of the Company are mortgaged as collateral for the former agreements.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, a subsidiary (TPI Oil Company Limited) has land including structures existing at present and to be constructed in the future and also machinery and equipment which are pledged as collateral to a domestic financial institution pursuant to the loan agreement dated October 30, 1996 and March 31, 1999 amounting to Baht 1,645.84 million.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, a subsidiary (Thai ABS Company Limited) has 194 items of machinery mortgaged as collateral pursuant to the loan agreements amounting to Baht 2,657 million.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, investments in fourteen companies have been mortgaged as collateral pursuant to the business reorganization plan dated September 25, 2000 and November 1, 2000, which are summarized as follows:

	
	Million Baht 

	
	Consolidated
	
	The Company Only

	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
Carrying value of investment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
- seven subsidiaries
	-
	
	-
	
	2,152.74
	
	1,560.98

	
- four related parties
	7,034.46
	
	11,454.34
	
	7,034.46
	
	11,454.34

	
- three other companies
	1,503.61
	
	   1,654.93
	
	  1,503.61
	
	  1,654.93

	
Total
	8,538.07
	
	13,109.27
	
	10,690.81
	
	14,670.25


As at December 31, 2003, the current Plan Administrator had entered into a security agreement in relation to transfer ownership rights of seven bank deposit accounts of Thai Petrochemical Industry Public Company Limited including twelve trade accounts receivable and also transfer ownership rights of 3 bank deposit accounts of a subsidiary (TPI Oil Co., Ltd.) as security collaterals pursuant to three domestic commercial banks as follows:

	
	Million Baht

	
	Number
	
	Consolidated
	
	Number
	
	The Company Only

	Outstanding bank deposit accounts 

(Number of account)
	10
	
	3,864.93
	
	7
	
	3,742.59

	Outstanding trade accounts receivable 

(Number of receivable)
	12
	
	1,235.67
	
	12
	
	1,235.67

	Total
	
	
	5,100.60
	
	
	
	4,978.26


31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 17, 2005, the Ministry of Finance and the strategic investors (PTT Public Company Limited, Government Pension Fund and Government Saving Bank) have signed a Memorandum of Understanding and determined the proportion for allocation to the investors of equity sales in compliance with the amended rehabilitation plan.
32. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain accounts in the 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 financial statements presentation.
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